
 
 

Agenda 

 
 

Audit and Governance 
Committee 
 
 

Date: Thursday 9 January 2020 

Time: 6.00 pm 

Place: St Aldate's Room - Oxford Town Hall 

 
For any further information please contact the Committee 
Services Officer:  

Jennifer Thompson, Committee and Members Services 
Officer 

Telephone: 01865 252275 

Email: democraticservices@oxford.gov.uk 
 
 

 
If you intend to record the meeting, it would be helpful if you speak to the 
Committee Services Officer before the start of the meeting. 



 
 

 

Audit and Governance Committee 
 
Membership 
Chair*  Councillor James Fry  

 
Vice-Chair* Councillor Chewe Munkonge  

 
Members 
(with 
substitutes) 

Councillor Tiago Corais  

 Councillor Andrew Gant  

 Councillor Michael Gotch  

 Councillor Ben Lloyd-Shogbesan  

 Councillor Martyn Rush  

 
The full membership is seven councillors and the quorum for this meeting is three members.  
Substitute members are permitted. 
These are shown above where notification of apologies and substitutes were received before 
the agenda was published. Apologies and substitutions sent after publication will be reported 
at the meeting.  
*Substitutes for the Chair and Vice-chair do not take on these roles. 
 

Copies of this agenda 

 
Reference copies are available to consult in the Town Hall Reception. Agendas are published 6 
working days before the meeting and the draft minutes a few days after. 

 

All agendas, reports and minutes are available online and can be: 

- viewed on our website – mycouncil.oxford.gov.uk 

- downloaded from our website 

- viewed using the computers in the Customer Services, St Aldate’s, or 

- subscribed to electronically by registering online at mycouncil.oxford.gov.uk 

 
 

https://www.oxford.gov.uk/info/20169/council_meetings
http://mycouncil.oxford.gov.uk/ielogon.aspx?lp=1&RPID=2852798&HPID=2852798&Forms=1&META=mgSubscribeLogon


 
 

AGENDA 
 

  Pages 

1   Apologies for absence and substitutions  

2   Declarations of Interest  

3   Council Tax base 2020/21 7 - 26 

 Report of: the Head of Financial Services 
 
Purpose of report: to set the Council Tax Base for 2020/21 as required 
by section 33 of The Local Government Finance Act 1992 and the Local 
Authorities (Calculation of Council Tax Base) (England) Regulations 2012. 
 
Recommendations: 
The Audit and Governance Committee is recommended to agree: 
 
a) that the 2020/21 Council Tax Base for the City Council’s area as a 
whole is set at 45,895.5 (as shown in Appendix 1 of the report) 
 
b) that the projected level of collection is set at 98%  
 
c) that the tax bases for the Parishes, and for the Unparished Area of the 
City (as shown in Appendix 2 of the report) be set as follows: 
 

 Unparished Area of the City 38,392.9 

 Littlemore Parish 1,804.5 

 Old Marston Parish 1,280.0 

 Risinghurst & Sandhills Parish 1,474.6 

 Blackbird Leys Parish 2,943.5 

 City Council Total 45,895.5 
 

 

4   Progress with the Recruitment and Retention Action Plan 27 - 36 

 Report of: the Head of Financial Services 
 
Purpose of report: to report progress on the recruitment and retention 
action plan 
 
Recommendations: That the Audit and Governance Committee: 

1. Note the progress made on the recruitment and retention action 
plan; and 

2. Note the aims and objectives to be included in an updated 
Equalities Action Plan 2018/21. 
 

 

 



 
 

5   Internal Audit: Progress update Quarter 3 January 2020 37 - 60 

 Report of: the internal auditor BDO. 
 
Purpose of report: to inform the Committee on progress against the 
2019-20 audit plan. 
 
Recommendation: That the Audit and Governance Committee discuss 
and note the report. 
 

 

6   Internal Audit: Follow up on recommendations from the 
audit of Fusion 

61 - 66 

 Report of: the internal auditor BDO  
 
Purpose of report: The Fusion follow up report was limited on both 
Operational effectiveness and Design.  
As a result the internal auditors carried out a separate follow-up review to 
ensure their recommendations were implemented. This report sets out the 
results of that review. 
 
Recommendation: That the Audit and Governance Committee discuss 
and note the report. 
 
 

 

7   Internal Audit: Recommendation follow up Quarter 3 
January 2020 

67 - 80 

 Report of: the internal auditor BDO  
 
Purpose of report: to inform the Committee on progress on those 
recommendations raised by Internal Audit which are due for 
implementation. 
 
Recommendation: That the Audit and Governance Committee discuss 
and note the report. 
 
 

 

8   Risk Management Quarterly Reporting to December 2019 81 - 90 

 Report of: the Head of Financial Services 
 
Purpose of report: to update the Committee on both corporate and 
service risks as at 30 November 2019. 
 
Recommendation: That the Audit and Governance Committee reviews 
the risk management report and notes its contents 
 
 

 



 
 

9   Investigation Team Performance and Activity for year to 30 
November 2019 

91 - 100 

 Report of: the Head of Financial Services 
 
Purpose of report: to appraise Members of the activity and performance 
of the Corporate Investigation Team for the period 1 April 2019 to 30 
November 2019. 
 
Recommendation: That the Audit and Governance Committee discuss 
and note the report. 
 

 

10   Minutes of the previous meeting 101 - 
104 

 To approve as a true and accurate record the minutes of the meeting held 
on 23 October 2019. 
 

 

11   Dates and times of meetings  

 The Committee is scheduled to meet at 6.00pm in the Town Hall on the 
following dates: 
 
11 March 2019 
 

 

 



 

 
 

 
Councillors declaring interests  

General duty 

You must declare any disclosable pecuniary interests when the meeting reaches the item 
on the agenda headed “Declarations of Interest” or as soon as it becomes apparent to you. 

What is a disclosable pecuniary interest? 

Disclosable pecuniary interests relate to your* employment; sponsorship (ie payment for 
expenses incurred by you in carrying out your duties as a councillor or towards your 
election expenses); contracts; land in the Council’s area; licenses for land in the Council’s 
area; corporate tenancies; and securities.  These declarations must be recorded in each 
councillor’s Register of Interests which is publicly available on the Council’s website. 

Declaring an interest 

Where any matter disclosed in your Register of Interests is being considered at a meeting, 
you must declare that you have an interest.  You should also disclose the nature as well as 
the existence of the interest. 

If you have a disclosable pecuniary interest, after having declared it at the meeting you 
must not participate in discussion or voting on the item and must withdraw from the meeting 
whilst the matter is discussed. 

Members’ Code of Conduct and public perception 

Even if you do not have a disclosable pecuniary interest in a matter, the Members’ Code of 
Conduct says that a member “must serve only the public interest and must never 
improperly confer an advantage or disadvantage on any person including yourself” and that 
“you must not place yourself in situations where your honesty and integrity may be 
questioned”.  What this means is that the matter of interests must be viewed within the 
context of the Code as a whole and regard should continue to be paid to the perception of 
the public. 

 

*Disclosable pecuniary interests that must be declared are not only those of the member her or himself but 
also those member’s spouse, civil partner or person they are living with as husband or wife or as if they were 
civil partners. 

 



 
 

 
 
To:  Audit and Governance Committee 
 
Date:  9 January 2020  

 
Report of: Head of Financial Services 
 
Title of Report:  Setting of the Council Tax Base 2020-21 

 

Summary and Recommendations 

 
Purpose of report: To set the “Council Tax Base” for 2020/21 as required by section 
33 of The Local Government Finance Act 1992 and the Local Authorities (Calculation of 
Council Tax Base) (England) Regulations 2012. 
 
Key decision: No 

 
Executive lead member:  Cllr. Ed Turner 
 

Policy Framework:  No 
 

Recommendations: 
The Audit and Governance Committee is recommended to agree: 
 
a) that the 2020/21 Council Tax Base for the City Council’s area as a whole is set at 

45,895.5 (as shown in Appendix 1) 
 
b) that the projected level of collection is set at 98%  
 
c) that the tax bases for the Parishes, and for the Unparished Area of the City (as 
shown in Appendix 2) be set as follows: 
 
Unparished Area of the City 38,392.9 
Littlemore Parish 1,804.5 
Old Marston Parish 1,280.0 
Risinghurst & Sandhills Parish 1,474.6 
Blackbird Leys Parish 2,943.5 
City Council Total 45,895.5 
 

 
Appendix 1 Oxford City Council Tax Base 2020-21 
Appendix 2 Parish Councils’ Tax Bases 2020-21 
Appendix 3 Dwellings by valuation band at 30th Nov 2019 
Appendix 4 Growth in dwellings 
Appendix 5 Risk Register 

 

 

7

Agenda Item 3



 
 

Background 

1. Responsibility for setting the Council Tax Base for the City Council’s area as a 
whole and for the individual parishes is delegated to the Audit and Governance 
Committee. 

 
2. The Tax Base is the estimate of the taxable capacity of the area for the period. The 

numbers of dwellings in each valuation band are converted to Band D equivalents. 
The starting point is the current number of dwellings, exemptions and discounts as 
at 30 November 2019 and projections are then made for expected movements over 
the period 1 December 2019 – 31 March 2021. Separate calculations are required 
for a) the whole of the Authority’s area and b) the individual Parishes and the 
Unparished area of the City.  

 
3. The Tax Base is used by the Council to calculate the yield from Council Tax for 

2020/21, and by Oxfordshire County Council and the Police and Crime 
Commissioner (Thames Valley) to apportion their precepts from 1 April 2020. 

 
Council Tax Reduction Scheme 

4. From 1 April 2019 the Council’s Formula Grant has reduced to zero with nothing 
receivable from the Government. Consequently the total cost of the Council Tax 
support scheme currently estimated at £1.6 million is funded completely by the 
Council. 

 
5. Oxford’s caseload has dropped over the last few years so the impact on the Tax 

Base is not as significant as it was in 2013/14 when it was estimated that 7,468 
dwellings would receive Council Tax Support. That figure has decreased to 6,185 
for 2020/21. 

 
Factors taken into account in the calculation of the Tax Base 

6. The following factors are taken into account when calculating the tax base: 

 Dwellings: The number of dwellings in each valuation band as at 30 
November 2019 (see Appendix 3 attached). 

 Exemptions and Discounts: Not all dwellings are liable for the full Council 
Tax charge, some are exempt. Others can attract a discount, either at 25%, 
50% or 100% dependent on the number of adults who are resident. The level 
of exemptions and discounts reduces the Tax Base.  

o The estimate of the number of dwellings that will be eligible for a 
25% discount in 2020/21 (recently built or uninhabitable dwellings) is 
77. This figure is shown in line 7 of Appendix 1 and is based on data 
as at 30 November 2019. 

o The estimate of the number of dwellings that will be eligible for a 
25% discount (primarily dwellings occupied by one adult only) is 
17,888.This figure is shown in line 8 of Appendix 1 and is based on 
data as at 30 November 2019. 

o The estimate of the number of dwellings that will be eligible for a 
50% discount (primarily dwellings where all the occupiers are 

8



 
 

disregarded) is 130.This figure is shown in line 9 of Appendix 1 and 
is based on data as at 30 November 2019. 

 Disability Reductions: Where there is a disabled occupant, and adaptations 
have been undertaken for their benefit, the dwelling is treated as being in the 
band below the one in which it was actually valued.  

 Council Tax Reduction Scheme: The estimate of the total number of 
dwellings that will be eligible for discounts under the Council Tax Reduction 
Scheme in 2020/21 is 6,185 compared to 6,261 in 2019/20. The breakdown 
per band is detailed in line 13 of Appendix 1. Please also see the Risk 
Register (Appendix 5).   

 Long Term Empty Premium: At the City Council’s meeting of 13 February 
2019 it was approved that the Long Term Empty Property Premium be 
increased in accordance with the Rating (Property in Common Occupation) 
and Council Tax (Empty Dwellings) Act 2018.  From 1 April 2019 the Council 
have charged a 100% premium on those dwellings that have been empty for 2 
years and over. From 1 April 2020 a 200% premium will be levied on 
dwellings empty for 5 years and over. From 1 April 2021 a 300% premium will 
be levied on dwellings empty for 10 years and over. As at 30 November 2019 
there were 92 dwellings that had been empty for 2 years and over. Of that 
figure, 24 had been empty for over 5 years including 4 that had been empty in 
excess of 10 years.  

 Discretionary elements: The Council has discretion in the following areas 
when calculating its Council Tax Base: 

(i) Number of new properties built: Appendix 4 shows the net annual 
increase in the total numbers of dwellings banded for Council Tax going 
back to 2010/11. In 2019/20 the net increase up to 30 November was 314 
(271 in the same period in 2018/19). In addition there are some building 
projects nearing completion and a figure of 109 new builds has been 
included for the remainder of 2019/20 (line 1a of Appendix 1). This 
number is net of the fact that some of those dwellings will be exempt or 
liable for a discount.  

For 2020/21 an estimate of 395 new dwellings has been built into the 
calculation (Line 1b) based on planning applications - a 50% discount has 
been assumed which allows for dwellings not being in the Valuation List 
for the entire period. The figure of 395 is net of purpose built student 
accommodation that is planned for completion in 2020/21. Such dwellings 
will be exempt from Council Tax and will have no effect on the tax base. 

(ii) Allowance for non-collection -The Council is required to make an 
allowance for non-collection of Council Tax. There is no definite evidence 
that the roll out of Universal Credit in Oxford has made the collection of 
Council Tax more difficult as claimants come to terms with the new 
scheme and the requirement to claim Council Tax Support separately. In 
addition it is critical that the tax base is maintained to an optimum level to 
ensure Council Tax income is maximised. Consequently the Head of 
Financial Services has recommended that the allowance for 2020/21 
remains at 2%.  

 

9



 
 

Calculation method 

7. The method used to calculate the Tax Base is prescribed by the Local Authorities 
(Calculation of Council Tax Base) Regulations 2012 (SI 2012/2914). The basic 
calculation is as follows: 

 Number of dwellings in each of the valuation bands 

 Less Exempt dwellings 

 Dwellings eligible for the Council Tax Reduction Scheme 

 Disabled reductions 

 Discounts (25% and 50%) 

 Convert to Band D equivalents 

 Adjust for projected collection rate. 

 
 
8. Appendices 1 and 2 attached set out the requisite calculations for the Authority as a 

whole as well as for the Parished and Unparished areas of the City. Table 1 below 
summarises the Tax Bases. 

 

Table 1 : Council Tax Bases  

 2020/21 2019/20 Change 

 

 Nos Nos Nos % 

Unparished Area 38,392.9 37,825.8 567.1 1.50 

Littlemore 1,804.5 1,798.0 6.5 0.36 

Old Marston 1,280.0 1,272.7 7.3 0.57 

Risinghurst and 
Sandhills 

1,474.6 1,470.4 4.2 0.29 

Blackbird Leys 2,943.5 2,927.6 15.9 0.54 

City Council Total 45,895.5 45,294.5 601.0 1.33 

 
 

Reasons for increases in Council Tax Bases 

 
9. The main reason for the 1.33% overall increase in the Tax Base compared with the 

2019/20 figures is the increase in the number of newly built dwellings (see Appendix 
4). Secondary reasons are a) the results of the ongoing review work carried out by 
Revenues staff on dwellings that are either exempt or which have a Council Tax 
discount, and b) a revision of the estimate of the numbers of dwellings subject to 
Council Tax Support. Table 2 below shows the principal changes between the 
calculations of the actual tax base for 2019/20 and that proposed for 2020/21.  

 

 

10



 
 

Table 2 : Estimated change in Tax Base 

 Numbers (Band D equivalents) 

Brought Forward 45,294.5 

New dwellings + 451 

Exemptions + 38 

 Council Tax Support 
caseload 

+ 75.5 

Review of Discounts + 36.5 

Estimated total 45,895.5 

Net Change + 601 

 

Risk Implications 

10. A risk assessment has been undertaken and the risk register is attached at 
Appendix 5. 

 

Equalities Impact Assessment 

11. There are no Equalities Impact Assessment implications relating to the setting of the 
Tax Base as detailed in this report. 

 

Financial Implications 

12. These are all included within the main body of the report.  

 

Legal implications 

13. The Local Government Finance Act 1992 states that Billing Authorities are to 
calculate their Council Tax Base figures as at 30 November preceding the financial 
year to which the Tax Base applies.   These figures must be notified to the major 
precepting authorities by the following 31 January. 
 

14. The method used to calculate the Tax Base is prescribed by the Local Authorities 
(Calculation of Council Tax Base) Regulations 2012 (SI 2012/2914). 

 

 
Name and contact details of author:  

Adrian Wood 
Finance Technical Officer 
Email: awood@oxford.gov.uk  
 
Background papers: 

Statement of numbers and Bands of dwellings issued by the Valuation Office Agency 
dated 30 November 2019 (see Appendix 3 of this report) 

11

mailto:awood@oxford.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 1

(A- are Band A dwellings with disabled reduction) Band A- Band A Band B Band C Band D Band E Band F Band G Band H Total
1. Total number of dwellings as at Nov 30th 2019 2,634.0 9,686.0 19,285.0 15,941.0 7,173.0 2,912.0 3,280.0 607.0 61,518.0
1a. Estimated new dwellings for Dec 1st - Mar 31 23.0 2.0 15.0 3.0 47.0 16.0 3.0 0.0 109.0
1b. Estimated new dwellings 2020-21 17.0 62.0 124.0 102.0 46.0 19.0 21.0 4.0 395.0
2. Number of dwellings exempt 2020/21 482.0 914.0 1,086.0 1,580.0 1,019.0 241.0 236.0 187.0 5,745.0

3. No.of chargeable dwellings for 2020/21(lines 1+1a+1b -2) 2,192.0 8,836.0 18,338.0 14,466.0 6,247.0 2,706.0 3,068.0 424.0 56,277.0
4. Number of chargeable dwellings (line 3) subject to disabled 
reduction on 30 November 2019 4.0 19.0 70.0 60.0 24.0 12.0 10.0 8.0 207.0

5. Number of dwellings effectively subject to council tax for 
this band by virtue of disabled relief (line 4 after reduction) 4.0 19.0 70.0 60.0 24.0 12.0 10.0 8.0 207.0
6. Number of chargeable dwellings adjusted in accordance 
with lines 4 and 5 (lines 3-4+5) 4.0 2,207.0 8,887.0 18,328.0 14,430.0 6,235.0 2,704.0 3,066.0 416.0 56,277.0

7. Est. of number of dwellings in line 6 entitled to a 25% 
discount (recently built or uninhabitable dwellings) 0.0 2.0 8.0 21.0 20.0 10.0 2.0 12.0 2.0 77.0

8. Number of dwellings in line 6 entitled to a 25% discount 
(Single Person or Disregards) on 30 November 2019 0.0 1,207.0 4,556.0 5,645.0 3,802.0 1,522.0 589.0 535.0 32.0 17,888.0

9. Number of dwellings in line 6 entitled to a 50% discount (All 
residents disregarded) on 30 November 2019 1.0 10.0 9.0 32.0 21.0 13.0 8.0 23.0 13.0 130.0
10 Additional 50% discounts for new dwellings 0.0 17.0 62.0 124.0 102.0 46.0 19.0 21.0 4.0 395.0
11. Dwellings subject to Long Term Empty Premium 0.0 9.0 18.0 17.0 21.0 11.0 5.0 6.0 5.0 92.0

12. Number of dwellings in line 6 assumed to be entitled to no 
discounts / premium (lines 6-7-8-9-10-11) 3.0 962.0 4,234.0 12,489.0 10,464.0 4,633.0 2,081.0 2,469.0 360.0 37,695.0
13. Est. number of dwellings eligible for Council Tax Support 
during 2020/21 (in Band D equivalents) 1.2 506.2 2,120.9 2,451.3 875.0 198.4 19.5 12.7 0.0 6,185.2

14. Total equivalent number of dwellings after discounts, 
exemptions and disabled relief [(line 7 x 0.75) +(line 8 x 0.75)+ 
(lines 9 and 10 x 0.5) + (line 11 x 2.0) + line 12-line 13 2.3 1,394.1 5,607.6 14,399.2 12,559.0 5,635.1 2,528.3 2,900.6 404.0 45,430.2
15. Ratio to band D 5\9 6\9 7\9 8\9 1.0 11\9 13\9 15\9 18\9
16. Number of band D equivalents (line 14 x line 15) 1.3 929.4 4,361.5 12,799.3 12,559.0 6,887.3 3,652.0 4,834.3 808.0 46,832.1
17. Number of band D equivalents of contributions in lieu (in 
respect of exempt dwellings) in 2020/21 0.00
18. Tax Base for Oxford City Council Billing Authority (line 16 
+ line 17) 46,832.1
19. At projected collection rate of 98% 45,895.5

Notes
Line 2 - Exempt Dwellings - Data comes from the Academy Council Tax system and includes empty and unfurnished dwellings with 100% discount (one month only) 
Line 7 - Recently built or uninhabitable dwellings - this data comes from the Academy Council Tax system as at November 30th 2019
Line 10 - Additional 50% discounts for new dwellings - the estimated number of building completions in 2020-21 comes from Planning's Housing Trajectory plan
Line 11 - Dwellings subject to Long Term Empty Premium - this data comes from the Academy Council Tax system as at November 30th 2019
Line 13 - Dwellings eligible for Council Tax Support - this data comes from the Academy Council Tax system as at November 30th 2019

SETTING OF THE COUNCIL TAX BASE FOR 2020/2021
TOTAL FOR OXFORD CITY COUNCIL

13



APPENDIX 2

(A- are Band A dwellings with disabled reduction) Band A- Band A Band B Band C Band D Band E Band F Band G Band H Total
1. Total number of dwellings as at Nov 30th 2019 262.0 437.0 1,432.0 304.0 137.0 56.0 10.0 6.0 2,644.0
1a. Estimated new dwellings for Dec 1st - Mar 31 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
1b. Estimated new dwellings 2020-21 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
2. Number of dwellings exempt 2020/21 10.0 19.0 20.0 6.0 3.0 1.0 0.0 0.0 59.0

3. No.of chargeable dwellings for 2020/21(lines 1+1a+1b -2) 252.0 418.0 1,412.0 298.0 134.0 55.0 10.0 6.0 2,585.0
4. Number of chargeable dwellings (line 3) subject to disabled 
reduction on 30 November 2019 2.0 1.0 9.0 2.0 0.0 1.0 0.0 1.0 16.0

5. Number of dwellings effectively subject to council tax for 
this band by virtue of disabled relief (line 4 after reduction) 2.0 1.0 9.0 2.0 0.0 1.0 0.0 1.0 16.0
6. Number of chargeable dwellings adjusted in accordance 
with lines 4 and 5 (lines 3-4+5) 2.0 251.0 426.0 1,405.0 296.0 135.0 54.0 11.0 5.0 2,585.0

7. Est. of number of dwellings in line 6 entitled to a 25% 
discount (recently built or uninhabitable dwellings) 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.0

8. Number of dwellings in line 6 entitled to a 25% discount 
(Single Person or Disregards) on 30 November 2019 0.0 125.0 235.0 382.0 70.0 30.0 13.0 2.0 0.0 857.0

9. Number of dwellings in line 6 entitled to a 50% discount (All 
residents disregarded) on 30 November 2019 0.0 0.0 3.0 16.0 0.0 0.0 1.0 1.0 0.0 21.0
10 Additional 50% discounts for new dwellings 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
11. Dwellings subject to Long Term Empty Premium 0.0 3.0 1.0 2.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 6.0

12. Number of dwellings in line 6 assumed to be entitled to no 
discounts / premium (lines 6-7-8-9-10-11) 2.0 123.0 187.0 1,004.0 226.0 105.0 40.0 8.0 5.0 1,700.0
13. Est. number of dwellings eligible for Council Tax Support 
during 2020/21 (in Band D equivalents) 0.9 82.8 103.0 136.4 23.0 4.7 0.0 0.0 0.0 350.8

14. Total equivalent number of dwellings after discounts, 
exemptions and disabled relief [(line 7 x 0.75) +(line 8 x 0.75)+ 
(lines 9 and 10 x 0.5) + (line 11 x 2.0) + line 12-line 13 1.1 140.0 263.8 1,166.9 255.5 122.8 50.3 10.0 5.0 2,015.4
15. Ratio to band D 5\9 6\9 7\9 8\9 1.0 11\9 13\9 15\9 18\9
16. Number of band D equivalents (line 14 x line 15) 0.6 93.3 205.2 1,037.2 255.5 150.1 72.7 16.7 10.0 1,841.3
17. Number of band D equivalents of contributions in lieu (in 
respect of exempt dwellings) in 2020/21 0.00
18. Tax Base for Oxford City Council Billing Authority (line 16 
+ line 17) 1,841.3
19. At projected collection rate of 98% 1,804.5

Notes
Line 2 - Exempt Dwellings - Data comes from the Academy Council Tax system and includes empty and unfurnished dwellings with 100% discount (one month only) 
Line 7 - Recently built or uninhabitable dwellings - this data comes from the Academy Council Tax system as at November 30th 2019
Line 10 - Additional 50% discounts for new dwellings - the estimated number of building completions in 2020-21 comes from Planning's Housing Trajectory plan
Line 11 - Dwellings subject to Long Term Empty Premium - this data comes from the Academy Council Tax system as at November 30th 2019
Line 13 - Dwellings eligible for Council Tax Support - this data comes from the Academy Council Tax system as at November 30th 2019

SETTING OF THE COUNCIL TAX BASE FOR 2020/2021
TOTAL FOR LITTLEMORE PARISH COUNCIL

14



APPENDIX 2

(A- are Band A dwellings with disabled reduction) Band A- Band A Band B Band C Band D Band E Band F Band G Band H Total
1. Total number of dwellings as at Nov 30th 2019 84.0 43.0 349.0 781.0 150.0 25.0 75.0 3.0 1,510.0
1a. Estimated new dwellings for Dec 1st - Mar 31 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
1b. Estimated new dwellings 2020-21 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
2. Number of dwellings exempt 2020/21 0.0 2.0 7.0 13.0 4.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 26.0

3. No.of chargeable dwellings for 2020/21(lines 1+1a+1b -2) 84.0 41.0 342.0 768.0 146.0 25.0 75.0 3.0 1,484.0
4. Number of chargeable dwellings (line 3) subject to disabled 
reduction on 30 November 2019 1.0 0.0 3.0 4.0 0.0 0.0 1.0 0.0 9.0

5. Number of dwellings effectively subject to council tax for 
this band by virtue of disabled relief (line 4 after reduction) 1.0 0.0 3.0 4.0 0.0 0.0 1.0 0.0 9.0
6. Number of chargeable dwellings adjusted in accordance 
with lines 4 and 5 (lines 3-4+5) 1.0 83.0 44.0 343.0 764.0 146.0 26.0 74.0 3.0 1,484.0

7. Est. of number of dwellings in line 6 entitled to a 25% 
discount (recently built or uninhabitable dwellings) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

8. Number of dwellings in line 6 entitled to a 25% discount 
(Single Person or Disregards) on 30 November 2019 0.0 42.0 17.0 141.0 194.0 40.0 6.0 15.0 0.0 455.0

9. Number of dwellings in line 6 entitled to a 50% discount (All 
residents disregarded) on 30 November 2019 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
10 Additional 50% discounts for new dwellings 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
11. Dwellings subject to Long Term Empty Premium 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.0

12. Number of dwellings in line 6 assumed to be entitled to no 
discounts / premium (lines 6-7-8-9-10-11) 1.0 41.0 27.0 201.0 570.0 106.0 20.0 59.0 3.0 1,028.0
13. Est. number of dwellings eligible for Council Tax Support 
during 2020/21 (in Band D equivalents) 0.0 7.3 1.5 47.9 35.7 3.5 0.0 0.0 0.0 95.9

14. Total equivalent number of dwellings after discounts, 
exemptions and disabled relief [(line 7 x 0.75) +(line 8 x 0.75)+ 
(lines 9 and 10 x 0.5) + (line 11 x 2.0) + line 12-line 13 1.0 65.2 38.3 260.9 679.8 132.5 24.5 70.3 3.0 1,275.5
15. Ratio to band D 5\9 6\9 7\9 8\9 1.0 11\9 13\9 15\9 18\9
16. Number of band D equivalents (line 14 x line 15) 0.6 43.5 29.8 231.9 679.8 161.9 35.4 117.2 6.0 1,306.1
17. Number of band D equivalents of contributions in lieu (in 
respect of exempt dwellings) in 2020/21 0.00
18. Tax Base for Oxford City Council Billing Authority (line 16 
+ line 17) 1,306.1
19. At projected collection rate of 98% 1,280.0

Notes
Line 2 - Exempt Dwellings - Data comes from the Academy Council Tax system and includes empty and unfurnished dwellings with 100% discount (one month only) 
Line 7 - Recently built or uninhabitable dwellings - this data comes from the Academy Council Tax system as at November 30th 2019
Line 10 - Additional 50% discounts for new dwellings - the estimated number of building completions in 2020-21 comes from Planning's Housing Trajectory plan
Line 11 - Dwellings subject to Long Term Empty Premium - this data comes from the Academy Council Tax system as at November 30th 2019
Line 13 - Dwellings eligible for Council Tax Support - this data comes from the Academy Council Tax system as at November 30th 2019

SETTING OF THE COUNCIL TAX BASE FOR 2020/2021
TOTAL FOR OLD MARSTON PARISH COUNCIL

15



APPENDIX 2

(A- are Band A dwellings with disabled reduction) Band A- Band A Band B Band C Band D Band E Band F Band G Band H Total
1. Total number of dwellings as at Nov 30th 2019 17.0 287.0 278.0 1,003.0 100.0 94.0 22.0 0.0 1,801.0
1a. Estimated new dwellings for Dec 1st - Mar 31 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
1b. Estimated new dwellings 2020-21 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
2. Number of dwellings exempt 2020/21 2.0 6.0 7.0 19.0 1.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 35.0

3. No.of chargeable dwellings for 2020/21(lines 1+1a+1b -2) 15.0 281.0 271.0 984.0 99.0 94.0 22.0 0.0 1,766.0
4. Number of chargeable dwellings (line 3) subject to 
disabled reduction on 30 November 2019 0.0 0.0 4.0 4.0 0.0 1.0 0.0 0.0 9.0

5. Number of dwellings effectively subject to council tax for 
this band by virtue of disabled relief (line 4 after reduction) 0.0 0.0 4.0 4.0 0.0 1.0 0.0 0.0 9.0
6. Number of chargeable dwellings adjusted in accordance 
with lines 4 and 5 (lines 3-4+5) 0.0 15.0 285.0 271.0 980.0 100.0 93.0 22.0 0.0 1,766.0

7. Est. of number of dwellings in line 6 entitled to a 25% 
discount (recently built or uninhabitable dwellings) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 4.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 4.0

8. Number of dwellings in line 6 entitled to a 25% discount 
(Single Person or Disregards) on 30 November 2019 0.0 11.0 155.0 85.0 214.0 19.0 19.0 3.0 0.0 506.0

9. Number of dwellings in line 6 entitled to a 50% discount 
(All residents disregarded) on 30 November 2019 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 3.0
10 Additional 50% discounts for new dwellings 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
11. Dwellings subject to Long Term Empty Premium 0.0 0.0 1.0 0.0 1.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 2.0

12. Number of dwellings in line 6 assumed to be entitled to 
no discounts / premium (lines 6-7-8-9-10-11) 0.0 4.0 129.0 185.0 760.0 80.0 74.0 19.0 0.0 1,251.0
13. Est. number of dwellings eligible for Council Tax Support 
during 2020/21 (in Band D equivalents) 0.0 0.8 63.4 29.9 42.5 0.9 1.6 0.0 0.0 139.1

14. Total equivalent number of dwellings after discounts, 
exemptions and disabled relief [(line 7 x 0.75) +(line 8 x 
0.75)+ (lines 9 and 10 x 0.5) + (line 11 x 2.0) + line 12-line 13 0.0 11.5 183.9 219.4 883.5 93.9 86.7 21.3 0.0 1,500.2
15. Ratio to band D 5\9 6\9 7\9 8\9 1.0 11\9 13\9 15\9 18\9
16. Number of band D equivalents (line 14 x line 15) 0.0 7.7 143.0 195.0 883.5 114.8 125.2 35.5 0.0 1,504.7
17. Number of band D equivalents of contributions in lieu (in 
respect of exempt dwellings) in 2020/21 0.00
18. Tax Base for Oxford City Council Billing Authority (line 16 
+ line 17) 1,504.7
19. At projected collection rate of 98% 1,474.6

Notes
Line 2 - Exempt Dwellings - Data comes from the Academy Council Tax system and includes empty and unfurnished dwellings with 100% discount (one month only) 
Line 7 - Recently built or uninhabitable dwellings - this data comes from the Academy Council Tax system as at November 30th 2019
Line 10 - Additional 50% discounts for new dwellings - the estimated number of building completions in 2020-21 comes from Planning's Housing Trajectory plan
Line 11 - Dwellings subject to Long Term Empty Premium - this data comes from the Academy Council Tax system as at November 30th 2019
Line 13 - Dwellings eligible for Council Tax Support - this data comes from the Academy Council Tax system as at November 30th 2019

SETTING OF THE COUNCIL TAX BASE FOR 2020/2021
TOTAL FOR RISINGHURST & SANDHILLS PARISH COUNCIL

16



APPENDIX 2

(A- are Band A dwellings with disabled reduction) Band A- Band A Band B Band C Band D Band E Band F Band G Band H Total
1. Total number of dwellings as at Nov 30th 2019 285.0 1,300.0 2,959.0 446.0 46.0 1.0 0.0 2.0 5,039.0
1a. Estimated new dwellings for Dec 1st - Mar 31 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
1b. Estimated new dwellings 2020-21 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
2. Number of dwellings exempt 2020/21 6.0 27.0 10.0 3.0 1.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 47.0

3. No.of chargeable dwellings for 2020/21(lines 1+1a+1b -2) 279.0 1,273.0 2,949.0 443.0 45.0 1.0 0.0 2.0 4,992.0
4. Number of chargeable dwellings (line 3) subject to 
disabled reduction on 30 November 2019 0.0 2.0 14.0 6.0 2.0 0.0 0.0 1.0 25.0

5. Number of dwellings effectively subject to council tax for 
this band by virtue of disabled relief (line 4 after reduction) 0.0 2.0 14.0 6.0 2.0 0.0 0.0 1.0 25.0
6. Number of chargeable dwellings adjusted in accordance 
with lines 4 and 5 (lines 3-4+5) 0.0 281.0 1,285.0 2,941.0 439.0 43.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 4,992.0

7. Est. of number of dwellings in line 6 entitled to a 25% 
discount (recently built or uninhabitable dwellings) 0.0 0.0 1.0 1.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 2.0

8. Number of dwellings in line 6 entitled to a 25% discount 
(Single Person or Disregards) on 30 November 2019 0.0 226.0 736.0 794.0 108.0 8.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1,872.0

9. Number of dwellings in line 6 entitled to a 50% discount 
(All residents disregarded) on 30 November 2019 0.0 0.0 2.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.0 1.0 4.0
10 Additional 50% discounts for new dwellings 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
11. Dwellings subject to Long Term Empty Premium 0.0 1.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.0

12. Number of dwellings in line 6 assumed to be entitled to no 
discounts / premium (lines 6-7-8-9-10-11) 0.0 54.0 546.0 2,146.0 331.0 35.0 1.0 0.0 0.0 3,113.0
13. Est. number of dwellings eligible for Council Tax Support 
during 2020/21 (in Band D equivalents) 0.0 120.9 413.8 462.3 70.6 16.4 0.8 0.0 0.0 1,084.8

14. Total equivalent number of dwellings after discounts, 
exemptions and disabled relief [(line 7 x 0.75) +(line 8 x 0.75)+ 
(lines 9 and 10 x 0.5) + (line 11 x 2.0) + line 12-line 13 0.0 104.6 686.0 2,280.0 341.4 24.6 0.2 0.5 0.5 3,437.8
15. Ratio to band D 5\9 6\9 7\9 8\9 1.0 11\9 13\9 15\9 18\9
16. Number of band D equivalents (line 14 x line 15) 0.0 69.7 533.6 2,026.7 341.4 30.1 0.3 0.8 1.0 3,003.6
17. Number of band D equivalents of contributions in lieu (in 
respect of exempt dwellings) in 2020/21 0.00
18. Tax Base for Oxford City Council Billing Authority (line 16 
+ line 17) 3,003.6
19. At projected collection rate of 98% 2,943.5

Notes
Line 2 - Exempt Dwellings - Data comes from the Academy Council Tax system and includes empty and unfurnished dwellings with 100% discount (one month only) 
Line 7 - Recently built or uninhabitable dwellings - this data comes from the Academy Council Tax system as at November 30th 2019
Line 10 - Additional 50% discounts for new dwellings - the estimated number of building completions in 2020-21 comes from Planning's Housing Trajectory plan
Line 11 - Dwellings subject to Long Term Empty Premium - this data comes from the Academy Council Tax system as at November 30th 2019
Line 13 - Dwellings eligible for Council Tax Support - this data comes from the Academy Council Tax system as at November 30th 2019

SETTING OF THE COUNCIL TAX BASE FOR 2020/2021
TOTAL FOR BLACKBIRD LEYS PARISH COUNCIL

17



APPENDIX 2

(A- are Band A dwellings with disabled reduction) Band A- Band A Band B Band C Band D Band E Band F Band G Band H Total
1. Total number of dwellings as at Nov 30th 2019 1,986.0 7,619.0 14,267.0 13,407.0 6,740.0 2,736.0 3,173.0 596.0 50,524.0
1a. Estimated new dwellings for Dec 1st - Mar 31 23.0 2.0 15.0 3.0 47.0 16.0 3.0 0.0 109.0
1b. Estimated new dwellings 2020-21 17.0 62.0 124.0 102.0 46.0 19.0 21.0 4.0 395.0
2. Number of dwellings exempt 2020/21 464.0 860.0 1,042.0 1,539.0 1,010.0 240.0 236.0 187.0 5,578.0

3. No.of chargeable dwellings for 2020/21(lines 1+1a+1b -2) 1,562.0 6,823.0 13,364.0 11,973.0 5,823.0 2,531.0 2,961.0 413.0 45,450.0
4. Number of chargeable dwellings (line 3) subject to 
disabled reduction on 30 November 2019 1.0 16.0 40.0 44.0 22.0 10.0 9.0 6.0 148.0

5. Number of dwellings effectively subject to council tax for 
this band by virtue of disabled relief (line 4 after reduction) 1.0 16.0 40.0 44.0 22.0 10.0 9.0 6.0 148.0
6. Number of chargeable dwellings adjusted in accordance 
with lines 4 and 5 (lines 3-4+5) 1.0 1,577.0 6,847.0 13,368.0 11,951.0 5,811.0 2,530.0 2,958.0 407.0 45,450.0

7. Est. of number of dwellings in line 6 entitled to a 25% 
discount (recently built or uninhabitable dwellings) 0.0 2.0 7.0 19.0 16.0 10.0 2.0 12.0 2.0 70.0

8. Number of dwellings in line 6 entitled to a 25% discount 
(Single Person or Disregards) on 30 November 2019 0.0 803.0 3,413.0 4,243.0 3,216.0 1,425.0 551.0 515.0 32.0 14,198.0

9. Number of dwellings in line 6 entitled to a 50% discount 
(All residents disregarded) on 30 November 2019 1.0 10.0 4.0 15.0 20.0 12.0 7.0 21.0 12.0 102.0
10 Additional 50% discounts for new dwellings 0.0 17.0 62.0 124.0 102.0 46.0 19.0 21.0 4.0 395.0
11. Dwellings subject to Long Term Empty Premium 0.0 5.0 16.0 14.0 20.0 11.0 5.0 6.0 5.0 82.0

12. Number of dwellings in line 6 assumed to be entitled to 
no discounts / premium (lines 6-7-8-9-10-11) 0.0 740.0 3,345.0 8,953.0 8,577.0 4,307.0 1,946.0 2,383.0 352.0 30,603.0
13. Est. number of dwellings eligible for Council Tax Support 
during 2020/21 (in Band D equivalents) 0.3 294.4 1,539.2 1,774.8 703.2 172.9 17.1 12.7 0.0 4,514.6

14. Total equivalent number of dwellings after discounts, 
exemptions and disabled relief [(line 7 x 0.75) +(line 8 x 
0.75)+ (lines 9 and 10 x 0.5) + (line 11 x 2.0) + line 12-line 13 0.2 1,072.8 4,435.6 10,472.0 10,398.8 5,261.3 2,366.6 2,798.5 395.5 37,201.3
15. Ratio to band D 5\9 6\9 7\9 8\9 1.0 11\9 13\9 15\9 18\9
16. Number of band D equivalents (line 14 x line 15) 0.1 715.2 3,449.9 9,308.4 10,398.8 6,430.5 3,418.4 4,664.2 791.0 39,176.5
17. Number of band D equivalents of contributions in lieu (in 
respect of exempt dwellings) in 2020/21 0.00
18. Tax Base for Oxford City Council Billing Authority (line 16 
+ line 17) 39,176.50
19. At projected collection rate of 98% 38,392.9

Notes
Line 2 - Exempt Dwellings - Data comes from the Academy Council Tax system and includes empty and unfurnished dwellings with 100% discount (one month only) 
Line 7 - Recently built or uninhabitable dwellings - this data comes from the Academy Council Tax system as at November 30th 2019
Line 10 - Additional 50% discounts for new dwellings - the estimated number of building completions in 2020-21 comes from Planning's Housing Trajectory plan
Line 11 - Dwellings subject to Long Term Empty Premium - this data comes from the Academy Council Tax system as at November 30th 2019
Line 13 - Dwellings eligible for Council Tax Support - this data comes from the Academy Council Tax system as at November 30th 2019

SETTING OF THE COUNCIL TAX BASE FOR 2020/2021
TOTAL FOR UNPARISHED AREA OF OXFORD CITY COUNCIL

18



19



20



21



22



Appendix 5 
 

Risk Register 
 

Council report – Setting of the Council Tax Base 2020-21 
Date 9 January 2020 

Author – Adrian Wood (Finance)  
 

No. Risk Description  
Link to Corporate Obj 

Gross 
Risk 

Cause of Risk  
 

Mitigation Net 
Risk 

Further Management of Risk:  
Transfer/Accept/Reduce/Avoid 

Current 
Risk 

Risk Score Impact Score: 1 = Insignificant; 2 = Minor; 3 = Moderate; 4 = Major; 5 = Catastrophic     Probability Score: 1 = Rare; 2 = Unlikely; 3 = Possible; 4 = Likely; 5 
= Almost Certain 

  I P  Mitigating Control: 
Level of Effectiveness: 
(HML) 
 

I P Action:  
Action Owner: 
 
Mitigating Control: 
Control Owner: 

Outcome required: 
Milestone Date: 

I P 

 COUNCIL TAX DEBIT 
A reduced debit (and lower 
tax base) could mean the 
City Council having to 
borrow to meet the Precept 
demands of the County 
Council and the Police and 
Crime Commissioner. Also 
the City Council would 
have less Council Tax 
Income to fund services. 

4 3 There could be less new 
builds than estimated in the 
remainder of 2019/20 and in 
2020/21. In addition there 
could be increased numbers 
of exemptions/discount 
cases.  

Assumptions used in 
numbers of new builds 
are conservative. The 
estimate is reduced by 
50% to allow for 
possible delays in 
these new properties 
being built and 
occupied in 2020/21. 
Council Tax Officers 
in Financial Services 
are reviewing existing 
exemption and 
discount cases to 
ensure these should 

3 2 Continuing 
monitoring of external 
trends (Adrian 
Wood). 
Monthly position on 
actual tax base is 
calculated and 
reported to the Head 
of Service of 
Financial Services 
(Adrian Wood). 
Significant changes 
to be reported to 
CEB (Adrian Wood). 
Mitigating control 

Assumptions remain as 
accurate as possible to 
minimise the possibility of 
shortfall. 
Monthly reviews. 

3 2 

23



still be granted. 
Assumptions are 
based on prior 
years/historical trends 
and take account of 
external impacts.  
 

owner: Nigel 
Kennedy 

 COUNCIL TAX 
COLLECTION RATE 
A shortfall in income 
actually received would 
mean the City having to 
borrow to meet the Precept 
demands (see above).  

4 3 Taxpayers withholding 
some or all of their Council 
Tax payments 

We eventually collect 
over 99% of the 
collectable debit for 
each period. 
Council Tax officers in 
Financial Services 
carry out regular 
reminder runs in 
cases of non-payment 
followed by 
Magistrates Court 
proceedings (if 
necessary). 

3 2 Monthly position on 
collection rate for 
current year (and 
arrears) is calculated 
and reported (Adrian 
Wood). 
Significant changes 
to be reported to 
CEB (Adrian Wood). 
Mitigating control 
owner: Nigel 
Kennedy 

Collection rate remains as 
on course as possible to 
minimise the possibility of 
shortfall. 
Monthly reviews. 

3 2 

 COUNCIL TAX 
INCREASE FROM APRIL 
2020 
At the time of writing the 
“referendum limits” for 
Council Tax increases in 
2020/21 had not yet been 
confirmed by Central 
Government. It is expected 
that these will be 2% for 
both the District and the 
County Council.  In 
addition there will likely be 
an adult social care 
precept of 2% on top of the 

4 4 Taxpayers will find it 
increasingly difficult to pay 
the full amount of Council 
Tax due. 

The Head of Service 
has stated that if 
needed further 
resources will be put 
into the collection / 
recovery process.  

3 2 Collection of the 
2020/21 debit will be 
monitored and 
reported at least 
monthly by the 
Finance Technical 
Officer (Adrian 
Wood). The HoS will 
be kept closely 
informed and the 
position discussed at 
the monthly 
Performance 
meetings. 
 

The collection rate to 
remain on course as much 
as possible to minimise 
the possibility of a shortfall 
arising. 

3 2 

24



core principle. 

 EFFECTS OF THE ROLL 
OUT OF UNIVERSAL 
CREDIT AND CHANGES 
TO THE COUNCIL TAX 
SUPPORT SCHEME 
The roll out of Universal 
Credit in Oxford took place 
in Oct 2017. Minor 
changes only are planned 
to Oxford’s scheme of 
Council Tax Support for 
2020/21.Our number of 
CTS claimants has been 
steadily dropping over the 
last few years. However 
there remains uncertainly 
over BREXIT. Should one 
or more major employers in 
Oxford close this could 
result in a caseload rise 
leading to an impact on the 
tax base and an increased 
cost to the Authority.  

4 3 More taxpayers may need 
to claim assistance towards 
the payment of their Council 
Tax by applying for Council 
Tax Support. This will 
reduce the Council’s 
Council Tax income and 
lead to increasing costs of 
providing the CTS scheme. 

In the calculation of 
the 2020/21 Tax Base 
(Appendix 1) a figure 
of 6,185.2 has been 
included as the 
estimated number of 
dwellings eligible for 
Council Tax Support. 
This is an increase of 
5% on the actual 
figure at 30/11/19. 

3 2 Our numbers of 
claimants are 
reviewed monthly 
and reported to the 
HoS by the Finance 
Technical Officer 
(Adrian Wood). The 
same applies to our 
numbers of Council 
Tax exempt 
dwellings.  

An increased estimate of 
the number of dwellings 
eligible for Council Tax 
Support has been 
included in the 2020/21 
calculation. In addition 
Council Tax staff will 
constantly be reviewing 
dwellings that are exempt 
from the Council Tax to 
ensure that the exemption 
should still apply. These 
savings will be offset 
against any increase in 
the Council Tax Support 
caseload.  
 

3 2 

 

25



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

. 

 

To: Audit and Governance Committee 

Date: 9 January 2020 

Report of: Head of Business Improvement 

Title of Report:  Progress with the Recruitment and Retention Action 
Plan 

 

Summary and recommendations 

Purpose of report: To report progress on the recruitment and retention action 
plan 

Key decision: No 

Cabinet Member: Councillor Nigel Chapman, Safer Communities and 
Customer Focused Services 

Corporate Priority: An efficient and effective Council: our ambition is for a 
customer-focused organisation, delivering efficient, high 
quality services that meet people’s needs.   

Policy Framework: None. 

Recommendations: That the Audit and Governance Committee: 

1. Note the progress made on the recruitment and retention action plan 

2. Note the aims and objectives to be included in an updated Equalities Action 
Plan 2018/21 

 

Appendices 

Appendix 1 Human Resources and Operational Development  (HR & OD) 
Development Programme   

Appendix 2 Equalities Action Plan 

Appendix 3 Aims & objectives for inclusion in Equalities Action Plan 2018/21 

 

Introduction  

1. Oxford City Council is currently working toward delivering a number of actions and 
activities in relation to recruitment and retention, focusing on policies, practices and 
procedures collated under an umbrella term; Human Resources and Operational 
Development (HR&OD) Development programme, Appendix 1. This work is closely 

27

Agenda Item 4



 

 

aligned to the delivery of an Equalities Action Plan, Appendix 2. This report 
provides details on the progress that has been made. 

2. The HR & OD Development Programme and the Equalities Action Plan have been 
informed by the 2018 Workforce Equality Report, (WER). Actions arising from the 
WER were agreed by the City Executive Board (now Cabinet) in 2018 in relation to 
key aspects of staff recruitment, retention and development, with the aim of 
enhancing the Council’s employee offer and ensuring the organisation is well 
placed in the local, regional and national labour market.  

3. The WER is a detailed analysis of the demography of the Council workforce, 
aligned where appropriate to comparative local and national statistics, and is 
published annually. The WER provides data on a rolling three year period to enable 
themes to be identified and actions amended or adjusted as necessary.  

4. At the last meeting of Cabinet a series of new aims and objectives for the Equalities 
Action Plan 2018/21 and 2019 WER was approved for publication on the Council’s 
web site. 

5. The HR & OD Development Programme is divided into seven areas; Equalities 
Action Plan, Employer of Choice, Recognition and Reward, Supporting and 
Engaging Young People, Talent Management, Workforce Development and 
Agency and Consultancy. (Please refer to Appendix 1 for details of the work 
streams associated with each of the seven areas of the plan). 

Background 

6. Prior to detailing progress against the various activities and actions it is important to 
set the context against which the HR&OD Development Programme and the 
Equalities Action Plan have been developed. It is also important to recognise that 
the work is regularly reviewed to ensure it reflects new and emerging themes and 
the changing landscape of employment.  

7. Oxfordshire is buoyant in an economic sense, with relatively high levels of 
employment and strong inward investment. However the cost of housing is an issue 
in the Oxford area which, to a certain extent, limits the appeal of vacancies to those 
within a reasonable commuting distance.  Only if the nature of the vacancy readily 
lends itself to a degree of home or remote working and/or the salary makes 
commuting a feasible proposition is it likely to attract candidates from further afield. 

8. Unemployment is low in the Oxford area. As a result the Council is not unique in 
experiencing difficulties to recruit in some key professions and, typically, these are 
the same professions where there are skills shortages nationally or where higher 
rates of pay are offered by the private sector. Finally, the physical proximity to 
London is also a challenge from a recruitment perspective as many potential 
applicants are tempted to commute to the City for work. 

9. Unlike some employers, such as NHS Trusts, there has been no notable impact on 
the Council’s recruitment activity linked to Brexit, however this is being monitored 
and may change. 

10. Finally the Housing and Growth Deal is a further factor that is likely to impact on 
both the retention of existing staff as well as the Council’s ability to attract new 
talent, whether for permanent recruits and/or temporary staffing. There is already 
evidence of increasing demand locally for key professions in areas where we 

28



 

 

already struggle to recruit, making the availability of talent scarcer and contributing 
to increasing salaries for such roles. 

11. An analysis of staff home post codes indicates that some 84% of employees live in 
the Oxfordshire area and 37% of those live within the OX1, OX2, OX3 and OX4 
postcode areas. (16% of staff live outside the ‘OX’ postcode area). 

12. The Council employs some 700 staff, with a pay bill of £ 33 m. It is relatively unique 
in so far that it has retained most of its services ‘in-house’ through the creation of 
Oxford Direct Services as a wholly-owned subsidiary (i.e. as a separate employer).  

13. The Council’s workforce is 59% female and 41% male. Within the female workforce 
64% work on a full-time basis, compared to 88% males. The workforce age profile 
is such that 38% of staff are over age 50. Staff turnover is approximately 11.7% per 
annum, which is broadly comparable to other public sector organisations. 

14. As an employer the Council offers flexible working arrangements to enable staff to 
achieve a suitable ‘work/life’ balance, as well as providing a wide range of 
employee benefits including providing financial assistance (in approved cases) 
towards relocation costs. An employee assistance programme is also available to 
staff, which offers support and counselling to employees on a wide range of 
personal issues including health and wellbeing and financial issues.  

The following sections are presented to align with the headings of the HR & OD 
Development Programme. 

Equalities Action Plan  

15. A concerted effort has been made by the HR team to promote the need and value 
of staff keeping their personal data up to date on the Council people management 
data base. Whilst not a legal obligation, the more accurate workforce data the 
council has will result in a greater level of reflective actions. Despite both a 
communications campaign and requesting managers to promote data recording, 
the actual levels of declaration of protected characteristics data has not increased 
significantly, although it is higher than in 2016. The HR team continue to encourage 
greater levels of data input during the ‘on boarding’ stage for new starters, and a 
major update to the Council HR data recording system in the autumn will be used 
to further promote updating by employees of their personal data.  

16. Mandatory training has been provided to all staff and managers between January 
and March 2019, with the aims of raising awareness about current diversity issues. 
The training provided can be summarised as follows: - 

a) An e-learning programme on unconscious bias rolled out to all staff 

b) ‘Face to face’ training provided to line managers covering: creating an 
inclusive environment; being a role model for diversity; and, understanding 
unconscious bias in decision making 

Further training opportunities will be identified in the next financial year. 

17. In addition, a programme of recruitment training is delivered by the HR team to both 
new managers, as well as colleagues requiring a ‘refresher’ in the Council’s 
recruitment processes (i.e. for line managers who do not recruit on a regular basis), 
which reinforces the messaging and learning delivered through the mandatory 
training detailed above. 

29



 

 

18. Quarterly meetings are held with all Service Heads to discuss the specific 
demographics of their service area, as well as opportunities for developing a more 
diverse, representative workforce either through ‘day to day’ recruitment and/or 
through planned organisational changes to reflect changing service requirements. 

19. At an operational level all vacancies are reviewed by the HR Business Partner 
team with the recruiting manager to consider: the essential/desirable requirements 
in the person specification for the role, with particular focus on the level of 
qualifications required vis-à-vis equivalent experience; the content of the job 
description; and associated job advert and advertising methods, to ensure that 
these are as inclusive as possible to ensure that the vacancy attracts a diverse 
group of applicants. Different approaches to filling a post are also reviewed, such 
as entry-level career paths for more hard to fill posts where a ‘grow our own’ 
approach may be more appropriate. Examples of the positive impact of such 
interventions are the recruitment scheme for the Diversity and Inclusion Manager 
(Community Services) and the Trainee Solicitor (Law and Governance) both of 
which were offered to high quality applicants from a BAME group.   

20. Advert copy for recruitment campaigns has been reviewed to promote the Council’s 
commitment to increasing the representation of under-represented groups as well 
as offering support at application and interview stage for targeted roles, with the 
aim of improving the applicant success rate for under-represented groups.   

21. A wide-ranging review of the Council’s recruitment processes and procedures is 
being progressed with the aim of improving the ‘applicant experience’ as well as 
widening the potential ‘pool’ of applicants for vacancies advertised by the Council. 
This process includes: simplifying the application process  and clarifying roles and 
responsibilities (internally facing aspects); revamping the Council’s recruitment web 
page; exploring the use of social media; simplifying the current on-line application 
form; introducing a CV application route; reviewing all information provided to 
applicants; creating more ‘applicant friendly’ template letters and notifications; and, 
developing an improved on-boarding and induction process. 

22. The improvements across the recruitment process have resulted in an increase in 
the percentage of job applications from BAME candidates from 20.07% at 31st 
March 2018 to 29.73% at 31st March 2019. This has translated to an increase in the 
percentage of new starters from BAME candidates to 18.03% at 31st March 2019 
compared to 7.96% the previous year. Staff leavers from BAME groups also 
increased in the year to 13.6% compared to 7.95% in the previous year.  

23.  A revised exit interview process was rolled out in December 2018 with the aim of 
gaining greater insight on reasons for staff leaving the council, which is currently 
around 10% per annum. The revised process is based on an invitation to a meeting 
with a member of the HR team, rather than the relevant line manager. The new 
process has resulted in a significant increase in the uptake levels of exit interviews 
(circa 55% of staff leavers, from less than 30%), as well as improving the qualitative 
data ‘captured’ through the process, in particular about the ‘reason’ for leaving 
(primarily around career progression and development opportunities for the majority 
of leavers). This data will be used to develop improvements and interventions going 
forwards, as well as provide feedback to the relevant service area(s) concerned.  

24. Officers facilitated a CV writing workshop to a group of Asian women at Rosehill 
Community Centre earlier this year, with the aim of encouraging and supporting 
them into work. This workshop helped to promote greater level of understanding 
between the Council and the Asian group, as well as providing a route to engage a 

30



 

 

small section of the community for the Everyone Matters programme detailed 
above.  

25. Recruitment roadshows were held in local community centres in May and June 
2018, with further events in February and October 2019. These events provide 
information to attendees on the range of opportunities within the Council and, 
where appropriate, provide face-to-face support to attendees on applying for 
current vacancies with the Council. Further events are planned in 2020. 

26. Appendix 2 provides an update on the Equalities Action Plan agreed in November 
2018. 

Employer of Choice 

27. An ‘employee proposition statement’ has been developed for use as part of the 
recruitment related activity, as set out in paragraph 20 above, which will be used to 
showcase why job applicants should apply for the Council’s vacancies. A new 
recruitment web site is in the process of being developed which will include video-
based ‘stories’ from staff describing why they came to work for the Council, the 
benefits of our flexible working policies, etc. Social media channels are also being 
explored in order to reach a broader labour market demographic than would 
otherwise be reached through web site based recruitment alone. 

Recognition and Reward 

28. Work is progressing on analysing the Council’s employment package relative to 
that of its competitors, with particular emphasis on ‘hard to fill’ roles in areas such 
as planning, building control and ICT. This data will be used to inform the 
forthcoming pay negotiations for a new pay deal operative from April 2021. 

Supporting and Engaging with Young People 

29. It is recognised that there is limited awareness amongst the 16 to 18 age group of 
the wide range of career opportunities within the Council. As part of a plan to 
develop more effective engagement with this age group, a structured approach to 
work experience placements has been implemented in partnership with Oxford 
Local Enterprise Partnership (OxLEP). Two ‘pilot’ programmes were delivered in 
July and October involving 6 students in total, four from the BAME communities in 
Oxford. This programme has enabled the Council to engage directly with young 
people from Oxford, as well as provide a positive experience of working with the 
Council. Following the success of this pilot a similar programme is scheduled for 
the summer of 2020. Over time it is hope that this programme will help to raise the 
profile of the Council amongst this key group of future workers.  

30. Research has been conducted to establish which schools in the city have the 
highest population of BAME students, to enable more targeted recruitment 
roadshows and other school engagement opportunities. This data will be used in 
planning ‘outreach’ activity and, if approved, apprenticeship opportunities for the 
2020 cohort. 

31. Apprenticeship Cohorts – The Council is currently committed to providing funding 
for a biennial apprenticeship cohort. This has been successfully running since 
2012. The next cohort is due in September 2020 and the approach to the level of 
qualifications offered will be reviewed to consider workforce planning activity and 
adopting positive action in the recruitment process. The current apprenticeship 

31



 

 

cohort 2018 – 2020 consists of 11 apprentices of which 25% are from a BAME 
background. 

Talent Management 

32. A Talent Management Framework was developed and agreed at CMT in 2018, 
however the current approach to internal positive action as described below has 
taken precedence.  

33. Career Development discussions are encouraged through the appraisal process 
and limited one to one coaching is available. The apprenticeship levy fund is being 
used to support 15 employees to gain career qualifications. The Council also 
provides an in-house delivered ILM level 3 management development programme 
accessible to all.  

34. Service areas are provided with funding to support career development 
opportunities. 

Workforce Development 

35. Learning and Development continue to be a key part of the employee offer and the 
Council continues to support a comprehensive corporate training schedule 
delivered by an in-house training officer. The schedule seeks to develop staff to 
reflect improving performance through building confidence, self-awareness and 
capability. This also includes a highly successful in-house fully accredited ILM level 
3 management programme. 

36. In addition to the current development opportunities offered to managers, either 
through the ILM scheme or apprenticeship levy, the Council is scoping out a 
management and leadership development programme for employees from under-
represented groups at various levels as an internally focused Positive Action 
programme, with equalities in service delivery and engaging with communities at its 
core. The approach is to develop a future Oxford City Council leader and manager, 
an inclusive leader who understands equalities needs within the local community 
and has the mind-set and skills to deliver accessible responsive services. This 
programme will need to be progressed through normal procurement channels and 
funded through the existing budget provision. However if the costs of this 
programme, once identified, cannot be supported by existing budget provision for 
2020/21, the priorities for learning and development spend will need to be re-
evaluated.  

37. Performance management has been enhanced through the introduction of an on-
line appraisal process, Actus, which reflects the old paper based system but 
improves efficiency and effectiveness. The requirement to have bi-monthly 
appraisal meetings continues to attract positive comment from our IiP 
assessments.  

38. An Equality, Diversity and Inclusion week of activity, ‘Everyone Matters’, was held 
in June this year for council staff. The aims of the programme were to:  

a) Enable better insight and understanding of Oxford and its communities, 
along with current diversity and inclusion issues.  

b) Act as a catalyst for cultural change seeking to facilitate changed 
behaviours, encourage people to try new ways of working and develop 
tools, mechanism or practices which build a sense of ownership of the 
equalities agenda. 

32



 

 

c) Create an environment and culture that is inclusive, by encouraging a 
commitment to equalities and a curiosity about understanding better 
equality, diversity and inclusion both internally and externally.  

39. The week was very successful in terms of outcomes, with positive feedback 
received from both delegates as well as training providers. 360 staff attended 
across the course of the week with over half making a personal commitment to 
change. A survey of participants after the event indicated a notable increase in 
delegates’ knowledge and understanding of areas of Council policies and 
procedures; increased awareness of how they can contribute to the diversity 
agenda; and a significant increase in perception and understanding of the Council’s 
commitment to equality. Another key outcome from the week was the identification 
of a group of colleagues who were interested in becoming an ‘equalities 
ambassador’, championing and promoting greater equalities and support the 
development of a more inclusive culture at service area level 

40. Technical Level (T- level) apprenticeships are being introduced in September 2020. 
A requirement of the full-time training programme is the completion of a minimum 
three month placement with an employer to gain practical skills and embed their 
learning. This placement is recognised as training and within this programme at any 
point during the placement a suitable candidate could transfer into a work based 
apprenticeship as a full-time employee. The Council is currently reviewing how to 
integrate and maximise this opportunity by both promoting the Council as an 
employer to BAME communities through placements as well as identifying potential 
entry point recruitment routes into the Council, which could incorporate a T-level 
placement programme.   

41. As part of the Learning and Development programme a comprehensive mental 
wellbeing programme, ‘Thriving at Work’ has been developed and being rolled out 
across the organisation. Following an initial focus on communication all staff were 
asked to complete an awareness training programme on mental health whilst 
managers were additionally provided with a ½ day training course which 
considered how to support people in the organisation with their mental health. The 
Council has funded the accreditation of four officers as Mental Health First Aid, 
(MHFA) instructors, enabling them to deliver accredited MHFA course to staff in the 
organisation. The Council currently has 36 accredited MHFA Aiders and an active 
Mental Wellbeing cohort delivering ad-hoc initiatives aimed at promoting positive 
mental wellbeing in the workplace such as; Tea & Talk sessions. Whilst it is too 
early to assess the impact of this initiative in terms of absence reduction it is clear 
that there continues to be a need with evidence provided through the absence 
types, with anxiety, stress and depression continuing to be the highest type of 
absence and the Employee Assistance Programme having mental health as the 
number one contact reason. The mental health first aiders have had 48 contacts 
since April. (Further Mental Health First Aid training is scheduled for January 2020 
and a further Managing Mental Health Workshop, aimed at line managers, is 
currently being designed for delivery in the New Year). 

42. As a result of the work detailed above the Council was asked to provide a case 
study for the mental health charity MIND, which has been published on the MJ 
website.  

43. The way the Council manages Health & Safety has been developed over the last 
three years and the governance structure is now more robust and challenging 
whilst also encouraging the ownership of day to day health and safety procedures 

33



 

 

to managers and teams rather than corporately. Health and safety performance is 
now more visible through an on-line portal and enables accurate data to be 
monitored and reported through the governance structure. To support this the 
Council is developing a training programme which combines health and safety 
procedures and processes with behavioural skills needed to enable them to be 
implemented as day to day activity.  

Agency and Consultancy 

44. In addition to working with service areas on wider workforce planning issues the HR 
department monitors and provides data to Service Heads on the usage of agency 
and consultancy workers. As noted in paragraphs 9 and 26 above there are a 
number of service areas where there is shortage of talent in the permanent labour 
market and, as a result, the Council has relatively high usage of agency and/or 
consultancy workers. The Council is also in the process of scoping the 
‘specification of requirement’ for a new agency worker contract, which will be the 
subject of a procurement exercise in 2020. 

New activities approved by Cabinet 

45. As indicated in the introduction above, Cabinet recently approved a number of 
additional areas of activities for the period 2018 to 2021. These are detailed at 
Appendix 3 below, and will be incorporated into a revised Equalities Action Plan in 
due course. 

Financial Implications 

46. There are no financial implications associated with this report. 

Legal Issues 

47. The Workforce Equality Report referred to in this report has been prepared in 
compliance with the requirements of the Equality Act 2010. 

48. Positive Action is one of the Government’s range of measures aimed at tackling 
discrimination in the workplace under the Equality Act 2010. It can be used in two 
areas: encouragement in training and recruitment and promotion. To adopt positive 
action approaches the Council must ensure it can provide evidence of the ‘gap’ it is 
trying to resolve and that the approach is reasonable.  

 

Report author Helen Bishop 

Job title Head of Business Improvement  

Service area or department Business Improvement 

Telephone  01865 255232 

e-mail  hbishop@oxford.gov.uk 

 

Background Papers: None 

 

 

34



 

. 

APPENDIX 1 

HR & OD Development Programme 

 

 

 

HR & OD 
Programe 

Equalities 
Action Plan 

Data 

Positive action 

Better and 
wider 
recruitment 

Refined 
processes 

 

Employer of 
Choice  

Branding 

Reputation 

Showcasing 

Flexible   
working 

Cv's  

Exit interviews 

Using social 
media 

Recognition 
and Reward  

Pay review 

Relocation 

Benefits 

Rewards 

Supporting & 
Engaging 

Young People  

Internships  

Graduate 
sponsorship  

Apprenticeships 

Work 
experience 

Promoting the 
Council 

Talent 
Management  

Succession 
planning 

Managing 
talent 

Talent pools 

Career 
development 

 

Workforce 
Development 

L&D  

Performance 
management 
& Appraisals 

Management 
Development 

Healthy & 
Safe 
workplace  

Agency and 
Consultancy 

Workforce 
planning 

Reviewing the 
use of 
consultancy 
and agency 
workers and 
the impact on 
the workforce 

35



 

. 

APPENDIX 3 

Aims & objectives for inclusion in Equalities Action Plan 2018/21 

Aims and objectives Actions  

Increase representation of 
BAME employees in the 
workforce and by 1.5% 
per annum. 
 

Communicate the case for this percentage and why this is a priority 
to gain commitment and buy in building on the success of equalities 
week. 
Equalities ambassadors to analyse learning to date and any further 
ideas to improve positive action 
All actions to other aims weighted to focus on achievement of this 
target. 

Increase representation of 
BAME at all management 
levels  
Increase representation of 
women at management 
levels where less than 
50% representation 

Positive action programme to train future managers and leaders, with 
places on the programme weighted to include staff from a BAME 
group and women and colleagues with other protected 
characteristics.  

This programme will need to be progressed through normal 
procurement channels. 

Recruitment practices that 
reduce unconscious bias 
and increase 
representation 

1. Consistent monitoring and application of competence based 
recruitment that focuses on successful behaviours required, rather 
than background or certain experience that may exclude under 
represented applicants. 
2. Promotion of roles in schools and community with high 
percentage of BAME, building on 2019 work and research. 
3. Target all new management roles to reach out to more under 
represented applicants especially, BAME and women applicants. 

Pipeline of trained and 
skilled diverse recruits 
through apprentice and 
graduate training 
schemes 

1. Review biennial apprentice cohort (Sept2020) to increase number 
from BAME and disability groups 
2. Adopt the T Level apprentice scheme to address areas such as 
planning to improve pipeline of planners from City and from BAME 
backgrounds. 
3. Graduate training scheme for future officers with at least two 
graduates from BAME background. 
4. Promote the use the apprenticeship levy funds for 
underrepresented groups. 
5. Review learning and development budgets with an equality 
impact assessment to identify further scope for positive action.  

An inclusive workplace 
culture that encourages 
innovation and delivery of 
accessible services 

1. Understand from exit interviews, equalities ambassadors and 
community work the barriers to applying for and remaining in council 
employment and develop and an action plan to improve further. 
2. When embedded use the management development programme 
action learning projects to drive a proactive culture that improves 
service accessibility and diverse team work, as foundations of 
innovation. 

Network of ambassadors 
who have the skills and 
tools to promote, improve 
and support equalities 
improvement in services 
and workplace 

1. Agree lead for developing and supporting network. 
2. Invite interested individuals who expressed an interest in 
becoming equalities champions. 
3. Train and provide guidance, including facilities to meet regularly 
as a network, with access to senior leaders to help empower and 
improve equalities. 
4. Communicate and recognise positive work by ambassadors at 
launch and on a six monthly basis to keep momentum. 

 

36



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT   

Oxford City Council  

January 2020 

37

Agenda Item 5



 
 

 
2 

 

   

 

Progress against internal audit plan                                                                        3 

Executive Summary – Treasury Management                                                            5 

Executive Summary – Corporate Performance and  

Service Area Performance (High Level)                                                                    7 

Executive Summary - Events Management                                                              11 

 

Audit Satisfaction Survey Results                                                                           16  

Local Government Sector Update                                                                          17 

 
 

Appendices: 

Definitions of assurance                                                                                        22 

 

  

CONTENTS 

 

38



 
 

 
3 

 

 

 

Internal Audit  

This report is intended to inform the Audit Committee of progress made against the 2019/20 internal 
audit plan. It summarises the work we have done, together with our assessment of the systems 
reviewed and the recommendations we have raised. Our work complies with Public Sector Internal 
Audit Standards. As part of our audit approach, we have agreed terms of reference for each piece of 
work with the risk owner, identifying the headline and sub-risks, which have been covered as part of 
the assignment. This approach is designed to enable us to give assurance on the risk management 
and internal control processes in place to mitigate the risks identified.  

 

Internal Audit Methodology 

Our methodology is based on four assurance levels in respect of our overall conclusion as to the design 
and operational effectiveness of controls within the system reviewed.  The assurance levels are set 
out in Appendix 1 of this report, and are based on us giving either "substantial", "moderate", "limited" 
or "no".  The four assurance levels are designed to ensure that the opinion given does not gravitate 
to a "satisfactory" or middle band grading. Under any system we are required to make a judgement 
when making our overall assessment.   

 

2019/20 Internal Audit Plan  

We are making good progress in the delivery of the 2019/20 audit plan, and we are pleased to present 
the following reports to this Audit Committee meeting: 

 Treasury Management 

 Corporate Performance and Service Area Performance (High Level) 

 Events Management 

 Fusion Follow up  

 Follow up Report 

We are also completing the fieldwork on the following audits: 

 Business Continuity and Disaster Recovery 

We anticipate presenting these reports at the next Audit Committee.  

 

Changes to the Plan 

The implementation of the Councils QL Areon system has been postponed to 31st March 2019. 
Therefore, the Housing Rents controls and processes cannot be tested until the implementation of 
the QL system. This review will be moved to the 2020-21 audit plan, subject to the Audit Committees 
approval. The 12 days will be carried forward to the 2020-21 audit plan. 

 

Process to Agree 2020/21 Audit Plan 

The Draft Audit Plan for 2020/21 will be presented to the S151 Officer for discussion in Feb 20. 
Subsequently, we will bring our Annual Opinion and Audit Plan for committee approval to the May 
20 Audit Committee.   
  

SUMMARY OF 2019/20 WORK 

 

39



 
 

 
4 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Audit Area Audit 
Days 

Executive Lead Planning Fieldwork  Reporting Opinion 
Design    Effectiveness 

 

Audit 1: Accounts 
Payable and 
Procurement 

18 
Nigel Kennedy    Moderate  Moderate  

Audit 2: ICT 
General Control 

12 
Nigel Kennedy 

 
  Substantial  Moderate 

Audit 3: 
Collection Fund 

12 
Nigel Kennedy 

   Substantial  Substantial  

Audit 4: Treasury 
Management High 
Level 

8 
Nigel Kennedy    

Substantial 
  

Substantial  
 

Audit 4: Health 
and Safety and 
Fire Safety 

13 
Helen Bishop 

   
Substantial  Moderate 

Audit 5: Contract 
Management 

15 
Nigel Kennedy 

  
 Moderate  Moderate  

Audit 6: High 
Level Business 
Continuity, 
Disaster Recovery 
and Emergency 
Planning Review 

12 

Helen Bishop    
Substantial 
(Draft)  

Moderate 
(Draft) 

Audit 7: 
Corporate 
Performance 

13 
Helen Bishop    Moderate Moderate 

Audit 8: 
Enforcement 
Restructure 

12 
Nigel Kennedy      

Audit 9: Events 
Management 

12 
Ian Brooke    Moderate Moderate 

Audit 10: Graffiti 
and Street 
Appearance 

10 
Ian Brooke      

Audit 11: Housing 
Rents System  

 12 
Stephen Clarke 

See changes to plan section on page 3, to be moved to 2020/21 
Audit Plan. 

Audit 12: 
Environment 

15 
Nigel Kennedy      

Audit 13: Fusion 
follow-up 

4 
Ian Brooke    N/A N/A 

Audit 14: Election 
Accounts 

12 
Anita Bradley    Substantial  Moderate 

REVIEW OF 2019/20 WORK 

 

40



 

 
5 

 

 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

LEVEL OF ASSURANCE: (SEE APPENDIX I FOR DEFINITIONS) 

Design 
Substantial There is a sound system of internal control designed to achieve 

system objectives.  

Effectiveness 
Substantial 

The controls that are in place are being consistently applied. 

SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS: (SEE APPENDIX I) 

High   0 
        

Medium  0 
        

Low  1 
        

TOTAL NUMBER OF RECOMMENDATIONS: 1 

 

BACKGROUND: 

Good treasury management is a key element of the effective management of working capital, 
ensuring that the organisation has cash available to meets its obligations while ensuring any 
surplus cash is managed within the council’s appetite for risk and return.  
 
Legislation requires local authorities to have regard for statutory proper practices in relation to 
treasury management, including CIPFA’s Treasury Management in the Public Services Code of 
Practice, which provides guidance on recommended treasury management practices.  
 
Oxford City Council (the Council) have a Treasury Management Strategy in place that is in line with 
this legislation, and outlines its arrangements for future investments. These include both specified 
(low risk with no more than one year in duration) and non-specified (any other type) investments.  
 
As at 31st March 2019 (FY 2018 -19), the Council held investments of £96.2 million, with net 
interest earned during the year of £3.12 million (excluding one-off or exceptional items). We can 
confirm the Council had no borrowings in FY 2018-19, and hence no borrowings were tested in this 
review. This exceeded the target of £2.91 million interest. The target for 2019/20 is £2.95 million.  
 
This was a high-level review which considered whether there is an appropriate Strategy for 
treasury management in place, and in particular if there is compliance with this when investments 
are made. To test this, we conducted sample testing of seven short-term and long-term 
investments, and three overnight Money Market Funds from April to September 2019. We also 
assessed if there were segregation of duties in place with regards to the processing and approval of 
such investments. Finally, we considered the level of treasury management performance reporting 
to the Council’s Cabinet.  
 
Treasury is noted as one of only two high risks identified by the Council. 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY – TREASURY 

MANAGEMENT 

41



 

 
6 

 

GOOD PRACTICE: 

During the audit we noted the following areas of good practice: 

 
 The Council have a Treasury Management Strategy in place that was approved by the 

Executive Board on 12th February 2019 prior to the 2019-20 financial year. The Strategy is 
reviewed and approved annually, which ensures that relevant economic climate factors are 
considered 

 There are Appendices to the Strategy which clearly set out minimum credit criteria, the 
maximum amount of investment and maximum maturity periods allowed per different 
specified and non-specified investments 

 In a sample of seven investments and three Money Market Funds that occurred between 
April and September 2019, there was 100% compliance with the various limits outlined in 
the Appendices 

 Of the sample of seven investments and three Money Market Funds that occurred between 
April and September 2019, there were appropriate segregation of duties between 
completing, checking and approving the investments 

 The Council prepare mid-year and year-end Treasury Management Reports that are 
presented to the Cabinet, and outline the Council’s activity and performance for the 
previous six months/ one year.  

KEY FINDINGS: 
 

Finding  Summary of Recommendations Owner Due date 

Finding 1 (Low)- In a sample of 
seven investments made by the 
Council between April and 
September 2019, there was one 
instance of email approval not 
being obtained from the Financial 
Accounting Manager. However, a 
verbal approval was obtained; this 
was a rollover of an existing 
investment. (Risk Accepted) 

 

a) The Council should follow 
their current process, of 
gaining relevant approval 
via email before any 
transactions are made 

 
b) As per current Council 

process, in exceptional 
circumstances where verbal 
approval has been given, 
the Financial Accounting 
Manager should evidence 
this by providing a 
signature and date on the 
loan ticket form.  

 

Financial 
Accounting 
Manager and 
Treasury 
Manager 

Currently 
in place 

CONCLUSION: 

 
Overall, the Council has treasury management procedures in place that are designed effectively to 
ensure compliance with the Treasury Management Strategy. The Strategy has been approved 
appropriately, with timely reporting of performance during the year.  
 
Of the ten investments tested between April and September 2019, there was sufficient evidence of 
segregation of duties between completing, checking and approving before any payments were 
processed. However, when analysing the final approval required by the Financial Accounting 
Manager, there was one instance of non-compliance. It is expected that this approval is via email 
for appropriate documentation, but in this case the approval gained was only verbal in nature. 

 

Therefore, our overall rating is a Substantial opinion on both the design and effectiveness of the 
system that was included in this high-level review.  

 

  

42



 

 
7 

 

 

 

 

 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

LEVEL OF ASSURANCE: (SEE APPENDIX I FOR DEFINITIONS) 

Design 
Moderate Generally a sound system of internal control designed to achieve 

system objectives with some exceptions. 

Effectiveness 
Moderate Evidence of non-compliance with some controls that may put some of 

the system objectives at risk.  

SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS: (SEE APPENDIX I) 

High   0 
        

Medium  2 
        

Low  1 
        

TOTAL NUMBER OF RECOMMENDATIONS: 3 

 

BACKGROUND: 

Oxford City Council’s (the Council) Corporate Plan for 2016-2020 sets out the Council’s ambition 
and strategy to help make Oxford a world-class city for all their citizens. The Council 
collaborated with local businesses, community organisations, unions and health education sectors 
to help formulate the Corporate Plan. The plan focusses on five interlinked priorities, addressing 
the key needs of the City. These are as follows:  

1. A Vibrant and Stable Economy 
2. Meeting Housing Needs 
3. Strong and Active Communities 
4. A Clean and Green Oxford 
5. An efficient and effective Council. 

 
Corporate performance indicators 
 
The Council use several corporate KPIs to monitor and manage the performance of the above 
priorities. Performance is reported by the service areas within the Council. Each Head of Service 
is required to monitor the performance of their corresponding corporate KPIs and upload 
performance to CORVU (management information system) on a monthly basis.  
Corporate performance is reported in a corporate dashboard to the Council’s Operational 
Delivery Group (ODG) and also the Council’s CMT meeting on a monthly basis. The Scrutiny 
Committee also select various corporate KPIs that are reported on a quarterly basis; these are 
often different to the KPIs reported at ODG and CMT.  
 
Performance for each corporate indicator is discussed within the following structure:  
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY – CORPORATE 

PERFORMANCE & SERVICE AREA 

PERFORMANCE (High Level) 

43



 

 
8 

 

 Commentary on the monthly performance by service area 

 Risks and mitigating actions proposed due to the performance results 

 People performance, financial performance and customer performance  

 Each indicator is RAG rated as Red, Amber or Green dependent on performance of each 
category. 

 
Service level performance indicators 
 
The service level performance is discussed and managed locally by heads of services and can be 
requested to be reported within the Council’s scrutiny committee. Service level indicators are 
uploaded onto CORVu however, these are not used to form dashboard reports. 

 

This review assessed the controls and processes in place for the monitoring, managing and 
reporting of Corporate Performance and Service level performance. We reviewed CMT meeting 
minutes, Scrutiny committee meeting minutes and a sample of corporate dashboard reports. We 
understood the CORVu system process and its utilisation. We interviewed heads of service to 
understand how service level performance is monitored and whether this is consistent across 
service areas.  

GOOD PRACTICE: 

We noted the following areas of good practice: 
 Heads of Service were aware of how to use the CORVu system and the mechanics behind 

the system 

 There was a good governance structure in place to monitor corporate performance 
indicators i.e. reviewed at Operational Delivery Group, CMT and also Scrutiny Committee 

 The design of the corporate performance dashboard report was adequate as it aimed to 
give an overall snapshot on the performance of corporate indicators 

 Team level/Service level indicators were monitored by service area management and the 
heads of service. Performance was reviewed on a monthly and/or fortnightly basis 
(especially if underperformance was reported) 

 There were monthly performance management meetings conducted for service 
performance within the service areas we reviewed. Action plans were collated where 
required 

 The scrutiny committee reviewed selective corporate performance indicators on a 
quarterly basis; we reviewed the scrutiny committee meeting minutes and noted that 
there was robust reviews carried out by the committee 

 Corporate performance indicators were clearly defined and reviewed annually to ensure 
the definitions are adequate. 

KEY FINDINGS: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

44



 

 
9 

 

Finding  Summary of Recommendations Owner Due 
date 

Finding 1 (Medium) -  The 
Corporate Performance 
Management Framework has 
not been updated since 2011. 
The methodology of the 
framework was outdated and 
was not in line with the 
Council’s current corporate 
plan from 2016 - 2020 

 

Review the Performance 
Management Framework (2011 – 
2015) and ensure it is updated 
regularly i.e. every two years and 
ensure it is in line with the 
Council’s current Corporate Plan 

Helen Bishop, 
Head of 
Business 
Improvement, 
Anita Bradley, 
Head of Law 
and 
Governance 
and Nigel 
Kennedy, 
S151 Officer 

1st 
Apr 
2020 

Finding 2 (Medium) - The 
progress of mitigating actions 
plans and due dates of actions 
were not detailed in the 
corporate dashboard report 

 
 

a) Actions plans should be 
SMART against each risk 
identified 

b) The actions original date 
should be outlined in the 
corporate dashboard 
report for each corporate 
indicator 

c) The due date should be 
outlined for each 
corresponding action 

d) There should be a 
detailed response on the 
mitigation of the risk 
since performance on the 
progress to date against 
each action plan. 

Nigel 
Kennedy, 
S151 Officer 
and Head of 
Business 
Improvement, 
Helen Bishop 

31st 
Mar 
2020 

Finding 3 (Low) – There are 
often delays in updating 
performance indicator results 
on the CORVu system by the 
heads of services and/or 
indicator updates on a 
monthly basis. 
 

a) The roles and 
responsibilities should be 
revised to ensure the 
data uploader and the 
indicator owner are 
separate 

b) There should be a 
discussion held within the 
ODG meeting to 
understand the reasons 
for delayed response in 
the upload of results.  
The importance of the 
data upload should be 
communicated clearly to 
all head of service and 
officers who upload 
results. 

All Heads of 
Services 

31st 
Mar 
2020 

ADDED VALUE 

We compared the Council’s Performance Improvement Framework against other Councils 

and noted the approach used to manage and measure performance against their corporate 
objectives. We also noted how other Council’s approach to performance monitoring and 
improvement differs to the Council. We also compared the Council’s dashboard reports 
contents, presentation and systems used to record performance results against other 
Council’s. We did not identify any improvements that could be made to the Council’s 
approach from this, although it was interesting to note that some Councils adopt a more 
`bottom up’ localised approach to performance. See appendix I and II for details. 

45



 

 
10 

 

CONCLUSION: 

Overall, the Council has a robust corporate performance reporting mechanism in place 
however, the Corporate Performance Management Framework has not been updated since 
2011 and therefore, the methodology outlined in the framework was not in line with the 
current corporate plan (2016 – 2020).  
 
Furthermore, the mitigating actions outlined against each risk within the corporate 
dashboard report did not provide sufficient details, such as progress to date and the due 
date of actions. Therefore, we were unable to identify whether the actions were overdue. 
As a result, we have concluded on a Moderate opinion for both the design and operational 
effectiveness of this area.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

46



 

 
11 

 

 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

LEVEL OF ASSURANCE: (SEE APPENDIX I) 

Design 

 

Moderate 

 

 
Generally a sound system of internal control designed to achieve 
system objectives with some exceptions. 
 

Effectiveness 

 

Moderate 

 

 
Evidence of non compliance with some controls, that may put some of 
the system objectives at risk. 
 
 

SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS: (SEE APPENDIX I) 

High   0 
        

Medium  5 
        

Low  3 
        

TOTAL NUMBER OF RECOMMENDATIONS: 8 

 

CRR REFERENCE: 

Strong, Active Communities 

BACKGROUND: 

Oxford City Council's (the Council) Culture & Events Team directly funds and delivers with partners 
a number of major citywide events, such as May Morning, St Giles Fair, Christmas Light Festival 
and Dancin' Oxford. The Council financially supports large events, e.g. Cowley Road Carnival, it 
also manages and co-ordinates approximately 300 community events and filming activities are held 
on Oxford City Council land each year. 
 
To hold an event the organiser of the event must apply using Event App external software 
available as a link on the Oxford City Council website. Once applications are submitted, they 
undergo a consultation process by the relevant stakeholders such as the emergency services, 
statutory services, relevant Council departments and relevant resident/community groups. The 
consultation process takes 2 weeks. The Council are responsible for approving applications once 
the consultation period has passed.  
  
The Council’s events staff administer events applications. Organisers are able to review their 
application status and add supporting documentation via the management system. 
 
We have sought to understand the processes and procedures in place through conducting meetings 
with various members of staff involved in the events process. We have gained access to the Event 
App and selected a sample of external events to trace through the application and approval 
process. We have also examined the policies and documents available to event organisers and 
compared these to those available at other councils. We have obtained the meeting minutes of the 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY – EVENTS  

MANAGEMENT 

47



 

 
12 

 

Safety Advisory Group and observed communications with various stakeholders. 

GOOD PRACTICE: 

Our review has highlighted how the events team has grown and developed over the last few years 
and has, in particular, incorporated the following best practices: 
 

 Event Surgeries have been introduced and appear to be successful at aiding the application 
process and improving efficiencies. From our observation of communications between the 
team and prospective applicants we noted applicants were encouraged to attend these 
events rather than communicating via lengthy email in the initial stages. The usefulness of 
these events was also noted by organisers in the recent customer feedback survey   

 The controls in place to obtain documents and payments from event organisers are 
effective, our testing of 15 events showed in all cases policies regarding required 
documents and approvals had been adhered to. All documents were reviewed and 
inadequate assessments were returned. 

 The internship scheme has received positive feedback from other team members and our 
review of communications has shown its usefulness in improving efficiencies for 
administration tasks 

 The introduction of the Event App has improved efficiencies and provides a useful audit 
trail of the application documents, reviews and communications. The feedback survey 
showed the majority of respondents rated the introduction of the app and improvements 
to the process as excellent, very well or good (67%), with the remaining either neutral or 
not applicable 

 The support provided by the team to event organisers was noted in the customer feedback 
survey; we observed through tracing application communications that the team are 
thorough in the guidance they provide to applicants and their responsiveness and customer 
service was rated highly 

 The Safety Advisory Group is effective at appraising and advising on events, we noted all 
expected events were presented and discussed at the group and feedback for it has been 
positive. 

 

KEY FINDINGS: 
 

  

48



 

 
13 

 

Finding  Summary of Recommendations Owner Due date 

Finding 1 (Medium) - There is 

no policy to ensure a 
sufficient number of staff are 
in place to safely manage 
large-scale events, including 
the appointing of deputies  

a)  The events team and 
SAG agree on a minimum 
number of staff required 
to safely run council-
organised events based 
on the size and risk levels 
identified in risk 
assessments. This should 
be signed-off and 
documented, so that it 
may be adhered to for 
future events. The policy 
should also state if 
individuals of a certain 
grade or holding a 
particular level of 
experience and/or formal 
qualifications are 
required. 

 
b) For the main events 

organised by the council 
during the year (e.g. St. 
Giles Fair, Xmas Lights, 
May Morning), 
appropriate deputies 
should be assigned for all 
key staff members within 
the events team, who 
would be able to 
temporarily cover their 
responsibilities in the 
event of an unexpected 
circumstance, therefore 
ensuring that the 
minimum staff 
requirements in the 
above policy are met.  

Paula 

Redway, 
Culture and 
Community 
Development 
Manager 

28th 

February 
2020 

Finding 2 ( Medium) - There is 
no formal training policy or 
process for ensuring staff are 
equipped with the 
appropriate training for their 
roles 

 

A formal training policy should be 
agreed upon that details any 
standard training required by all 
events management members, as 
well as role specific requirements 
that correspond to the newly 
classified roles (see finding 4). 

Paula 
Redway, 
Culture and 
Community 
Development 
Manager in 
conjunction 
with 
Emergency 
Planning 

28th 
February 
2020 

Finding 3 (Medium) - here is 
no agreed strategy or vision 
for events management in 
place 

 

a) Management should create a 
more detailed internal 
strategy for events going 
forward in Oxford; the events 
team has shared the Brighton 
Hove events strategy with us 
which we understand could 
be used as a basis for this. 
This should be drafted by the 
events team based on current 

Alison 
Drummond, 
Events 
Officer 

To tie in 
with the 
Vibrant 
Active 
Inclusive 
Communities 
and City 
Centre 
strategy 

49



 

 
14 

 

practice and knowledge, then 
shared with other relevant 
members of the council to 
obtain agreement and sign-
off.   

 
b) The agreed upon objectives 

policy should also be shared 
externally with applicants in 
order to guide applications, 
this could be an individual 
document or form part of a 
larger updated guidance 
policy (see Finding 8).  

deadlines 
for February 
2020 

 

Finding 4 (Medium) - The 
responsibilities and 
limitations of roles within the 
team have not been formally 
defined  

a) The events team should 
develop their current team 
structure to ensure it is up-
to-date and includes details 
of the specific roles and 
responsibilities covered by 
both the team as a whole and 
individual members;, this 
should be agreed and shared 
with more senior 
management 

b) The events management and 
emergency planning teams 
should create a combined 
policy to document which 
responsibilities and expertise 
sit with each team. This 
should be accessible so it can 
easily be shared with 
members of the SAG and 
external event organisers, in 
order to facilitate the 
appropriate direction of 
communications 

Paula 
Redway, 
Culture and 
Community 
Development 
Manager 

28th 
February 
2020 

Finding 5 (Medium) - There is 

a lack of clarity around the 
legal implications, 
particularly of advice given to 
event organisers  

 

a) The Council should review 
their internal policy as to 
what advice and guidance 
should and should not be 
offered by the events team 

 
b)  If it is deemed that a team 

member should be regularly 
giving guidance or approval 
on areas such as risk 
assessments then 
consideration should be given 
as to what additional training 
or qualifications that 
individual should hold 

 
c) Consider adding a clause to 

the terms and conditions to 
state the Council’s legal 
position for any advice given 

 

Paula 

Redway, 
Culture and 
Community 
Development 
Manager 

31 March 
2020 

50



 

 
15 

 

Finding 6 (Low) - Governance 
structures, roles and 
responsibilities between the 
Council and Oxfordshire 
County Council are not clearly 
defined for the management 
of events  

A memorandum of understanding 
should be developed and agreed 
upon by Oxford City Council and 
Oxfordshire County Council, to 
clearly define the approach to 
events in the City and where the 
roles and responsibilities sit.  
 

Alison 
Drummond, 
Events 
Officer 

31 March 
2020 

Finding 7 (Low) - Applicants 

are limited to the number of 
documents they are able to 
attach to an email message 
via EventApp 

Assess whether it would be 
possible to allow more 
documents to be attached to an 
email message on EventApp. 

Alison 

Drummond, 
Events 
Officer 

31 March 
2020 

Finding 8 (Low) - There is 
scope to improve the 
application information 
available on the Council 
website, in line with other 
Councils 

a) Update the current applicant 
information available to 
include more details about 
the process. In particular, 
more guidance should be 
given over the type of events 
that would be encouraged (in 
line with Finding 3) and when 
additional requirements are 
likely to be needed (such as 
criteria for SAG attendance)  

b) Assess developing further 
resources, such as an FAQ, 
that team members can add 
responses to and upload 
online, to help reduce the 
number of queries the team 
has to deal with 

Alison 
Drummond, 
Events 
Officer 

31 March 
2020 

CONCLUSION: 

We have seen how the number of events held within Oxford has grown significantly over recent 
years. We have observed several examples of best practice, including the effectiveness of the SAG, 
introduction of the Events App, internships and event surgeries to manage these. We have 
identified areas of improvement which include ensuring that policies, procedures and training are 
updated to keep up with the developments. We have therefore reported a moderate design and 
effectiveness overall and have raised eight findings (five medium and three low) to address the 
risks identified.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

51



16 

AUDIT SATISFACTION SURVEY RESULTS 

In aim to provide exceptional client service, we sent out a satisfaction survey on completion of each audit review. We were scored from a rate of 1-5 (1= 
poor and 5= exceptional). Please see the satisfaction results gained so far.  We received an overall score of 5 or above (good/Excellent) on most of our 
survey responses. Where we received a response, less than 4 we will endeavour to improve this going forward. 

Audit 

Review 

TOR Aligned 

to 

strategic/dep

artmental 

risks? 

Timeline of 

events from 

reporting 

agreed and 

clearly 

explained? 

Rate 

understanding 

of your 

business 

Rate 

communication 

Rate the 

closedown 

Rate the 

audits 

contribution 

to delivering 

added value 

Final report 

clear and 

concise 

Agreement of 

stakeholder 

Recommendat
-ions were
constructive

Did our 
work 
add 
value? 

Overal
laudit 
experi
ence 

Would you 
recommend 
BDO to 
others 

Elections Strongly 
Agree 

Strongly 
Agree 

5 5 5 4 Strongly 
Agree 

Strongly 
Agree 

Strongly Agree Agree 5 Yes 

Overall 
Score 

5 5 5 5 5 

52



 

 
17 

 53



 

 
18 

 

SECTOR UPDATE 

 
Our quarterly Local Government briefing summarises recent publications and emerging issues 
relevant to Local Authorities that may be of interest to your organisation. It is intended to provide 
a snapshot of current issues for senior managers, directors and members.  
 

FINANCE 

Councils’ draft funding settlement ‘needs to be announced as soon as possible  
 
The local government finance settlement must be made a priority by the new government and 
should be published this year, sector leaders have said.  
 
The draft funding settlement for councils must be published “no later than parliament rising for 
Christmas recess”, the Local Government Association chair James Jamieson said. 
 “One of [government’s] first priorities must be to publish the provisional 2020 local government 
finance settlement as soon as possible and no later than parliament rising for the Christmas 
recess. 
“This is absolutely vital to give councils the certainty and time they need to plan how to provide 
the vital local services our communities rely on next year.” 
 
https://www.publicfinance.co.uk/news/2019/12/councils-draft-funding-settlement-needs-be-
announced-soon-possible 
 
Government’s biggest contractors ‘likely to benefit from spending increases 
 
The 34 companies the government pays more than £100m a year to for services are likely to 
benefit from rises in public spending, according to a data firm. 
Central and local government in the UK spent more than £10bn on the so-called ‘strategic 
suppliers’ in 2018-19, a report from Tussell, data analysts on UK government contracts, has 
shown. The government spends about £250bn on commercial relationships, which is 
approximately a third of total government spending.  
The majority of the £10bn went on suppliers in the construction and engineering industries, the 
company said. 
From the collapse of Carillion to a number of high-profile IT contract failures, many questions 
have been raised over the model of outsourcing and large contractors have often been in the 
news for all the wrong reasons, the report said.  
“Despite market potential the last two years have been a turbulent time to be a major supplier 
to government”. 
Outsourcing giant Carillion went into liquidation at the start of last year and Interserve collapsed 
at the start of this year.  
The market share of these 34 firms, which include organisations such as Interserve, Kier, Capita 
and Serco shrank by 15% year-on-year – down from a high of 14.4% in 2015-16 to 10.2% in 2018-
19. 
 
https://www.publicfinance.co.uk/news/2019/12/governments-biggest-contractors-likely-
benefit-spending-increases 
 
Poll shows increase in trust in local government  
 
A poll commissioned by the Association for Public Service Excellence membership organisation 
also found the majority of respondents think not enough money raised from taxes is spent locally.  
The survey, which had 1,535, responses, found 61% of the public do not believe enough of their 
taxes are spent in the local area. A further 81% thought that the government should give councils 
more money to spend locally rather than spend at a national level.  

54

https://www.publicfinance.co.uk/news/2019/05/brexit-contracts-renewed-cost-ps160m
https://www.publicfinance.co.uk/news/2019/05/carillions-relationship-auditors-too-comfortable
https://www.publicfinance.co.uk/news/2018/05/mps-carillion-collapse-almost-inevitable
https://www.publicfinance.co.uk/news/2019/03/public-sector-likely-suffer-collapse-interserve
https://www.publicfinance.co.uk/news/2019/03/public-sector-likely-suffer-collapse-interserve
https://www.publicfinance.co.uk/news/2019/03/union-says-giving-contracts-troubled-interserve-irresponsible
https://www.publicfinance.co.uk/news/2019/12/governments-biggest-contractors-likely-benefit-spending-increases
https://www.publicfinance.co.uk/news/2019/12/governments-biggest-contractors-likely-benefit-spending-increases


 

 
19 

 

Nine times as many respondents trusted councils to provide local services over the government, 
which represents an increase from the 2018 when just five times as many favoured local 
government.  
The survey, conducted by market research company Survation, also recorded public satisfaction 
with service areas and found that satisfaction was highest for parks at 7.1/10. School meals (6.7), 
street lighting (6.6) and refuse collection (6.5) also had reasonable satisfaction levels.  
The lowest ranked services included affordable housing (4.3) and road maintenance (4.6).  
 
https://www.publicfinance.co.uk/news/2019/12/poll-shows-increase-trust-local-government 
 
NHS business rates claim rejected by High Court 

 
Councils have successfully defended a claim for billions of pounds of tax relief for NHS trusts. 
The High Court has ruled that NHS Trusts and Foundation Trusts are not eligible for business rates 
relief this morning. 
Derby Teaching Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust led a group of 17 trusts arguing that they should 
be treated in the same manner as charities, which receive relief on their business rates of 80%. 
A group of 45 local authorities, including Derby City Council, defended the claim for a rebate 
dating back to 2010. 
‘Councils, supported by the LGA, are pleased this common-sense decision will not see them having 
to pay NHS Trusts and Foundation Trusts £1.5 billion in unfounded backdated business rates relief 
nor see them eligible for 80% relief going forward. 
 
https://www.localgov.co.uk/NHS-business-rates-claim-rejected-by-High-Court/48693 
 

IT 

Councils ‘suffer 800 cyber attacks every hour’ 
 
UK local authorities were hit by an average of 800 cyber attacks every hour in the first six months 
of 2019, a consultancy firm has found. Freedom of Information data collected by the consultancy 
firm Gallagher showed that there were 263 million cyber attacks over the six month period 
sometimes resulting in financial and data loss. 
 

Analysis also found that 101 UK councils had experienced an attempted cyber attack on their IT 
systems since 2017 

In 17 cases a council had reported a loss of data or money, with one council losing more than 
£2m. 

FOIs were sent to 407 local authorities in the UK with 342 councils responding between August 
and September 2019. Given the number of councils who did not respond Gallagher said the true 
number of attacks could be higher. 

The Public Accounts Committee warned earlier this year that UK is more vulnerable to cyber 
attacks than ever before. 
 
https://www.publicfinance.co.uk/news/2019/10/councils-suffer-800-cyber-attacks-every-hour 
 

Environment 

 
English councils ramp up charges for services  
 
Council charges for services such as garden waste removal, funeral services and public lavatories 
have increased above inflation over the last decade, according to The Times. 
Analysis of English council accounts by the newspaper found environmental, regulatory and 
planning charges increased by almost 50% to £2.3bn from 2009 to 2017-18. 

55

https://www.publicfinance.co.uk/topics/local-government
https://www.publicfinance.co.uk/topics/local-government
https://www.publicfinance.co.uk/news/2019/11/no-homes-built-under-ps174m-starter-home-scheme-nao-reveals
https://www.publicfinance.co.uk/news/2019/12/poll-shows-increase-trust-local-government
https://www.localgov.co.uk/NHS-business-rates-claim-rejected-by-High-Court/48693
https://www.publicfinance.co.uk/opinion/2019/09/cyber-war-could-be-new-code-combat
https://www.publicfinance.co.uk/topics/local-government
https://www.publicfinance.co.uk/news/2019/06/pac-uk-more-risk-ever-cyber-attacks
https://www.publicfinance.co.uk/news/2019/06/pac-uk-more-risk-ever-cyber-attacks
https://www.publicfinance.co.uk/news/2019/10/councils-suffer-800-cyber-attacks-every-hour


 

 
20 

 

The revenue from these charges in the last financial year increase by more than two and a half 
times the rate of inflation, leaving every home in England paying an average of more than £100 
a year in additional charges on top of council tax bills. 
The newspaper said that households were paying 40% more than a decade ago for waste 
collection and disposal services, with councils earning £329m a year. 
Cemetery, cremation and mortuary services generated a record income of £320m in 2017-18 – 
a 45% increase from 2009. The Times said the cost of running these services is just £219m a 
year, which suggests a profit margin of 46%. 
Councils also increased charges for public lavatories by a fifth last financial year, following the 
closure of half of facilities since 2009, the paper found. 
CIPFA’s Performance Tracker last year found the number of authorities in England charging for 
garden waste collection rose from 88 to 199 between 2010-11 and 2017-18. 
 
https://www.publicfinance.co.uk/news/2019/12/analysis-english-councils-ramp-charges-
services 
 
Counting the cost of climate action  
 
As more and more councils recognise the severity of the climate crisis and devise ways to tackle 
it with support from residents, cost becomes a pivotal issue. Neil Merrick reports.  
In Leeds, reports show that a clean air zone, which charges diesel and other high-polluting 
vehicles, is cutting air pollution. 
 
In Bristol, homes continue to be connected to heating systems that save energy by serving large 
districts. Cycle lanes and charging points for electric vehicles are commonplace in most towns 
and cities. 
 
Since the start of 2019, local authorities have not just declared climate emergencies but are 
aiming to become carbon-neutral (or net zero) by 2030 – 20 years ahead of the government’s 
2050 target. 
 
Bristol, just last month, announced that it is set to become the first UK city to ban diesel cars 
in a bid to improve air quality. 
 
Under the plans, by March 2021, all privately owned diesel vehicles will be barred from entering 
a clean-air zone in the city centre every day between 7am and 3pm. Some efforts are being 
made. 
https://www.publicfinance.co.uk/feature/2019/12/counting-cost-climate-action 
 
Climate change means more funds are needed for flood prevention 
 
With flooding expected to become more frequent in the North of England, councils need more 
funding to protect residents. 

 
After communities in the North and the Midlands were struck by severe flooding, government 
activated the emergency Bellwin scheme, followed by 100% relief for residents and businesses 
on their council tax and business rates alongside grants of £5,000. 
 
Derbyshire County Council and Worcestershire County Council, both of which were affected by 
the floods, said they would be applying for reimbursement under the Bellwin scheme but neither 
was able to estimate the cost of the flooding at this point. 
To reduce the impact of future floods, Wheater suggested “soft engineering” methods to reduce 
run-off from uplands, such as planting extra trees, although he noted that this would only 
reduce floods “by a few per cent”. 
 
https://www.publicfinance.co.uk/news/2019/11/climate-change-demands-more-funds-flood-
prevention1 
 
 

56

https://www.publicfinance.co.uk/news/2019/11/councils-may-have-start-charging-garden-waste-collection
https://www.publicfinance.co.uk/topics/local-government
https://www.publicfinance.co.uk/news/2018/10/government-passing-costs-services-public-says-major-study
https://www.publicfinance.co.uk/news/2019/12/analysis-english-councils-ramp-charges-services
https://www.publicfinance.co.uk/news/2019/12/analysis-english-councils-ramp-charges-services
https://www.publicfinance.co.uk/topics/local-government
https://www.publicfinance.co.uk/news/2019/11/uk-should-give-un-climate-fund-ps20bn-until-2030
https://www.publicfinance.co.uk/feature/2019/12/counting-cost-climate-action
https://www.publicfinance.co.uk/news/2019/11/call-greater-government-investment-flood-hit-communities
https://www.publicfinance.co.uk/news/2019/08/councils-battered-summer-rains-look-ways-recoup-costs
https://www.publicfinance.co.uk/news/2019/11/climate-change-demands-more-funds-flood-prevention1
https://www.publicfinance.co.uk/news/2019/11/climate-change-demands-more-funds-flood-prevention1


 

 
21 

 

Vast majority’ of council vehicles run on diesel despite pollution concerns 

 
Over 90% of vehicles operated by local authorities run on diesel despite council efforts to tackle 
air pollution, new research has revealed. 

A car news website has found that an average of 91.6% of council vehicles use diesel and 62 
council fleets consist entirely of diesel vehicles.It has also discovered that London authorities 
are still running 724 non-ULEZ-compliant diesel vehicles. 

The website Auto Express’s findings are based on responses to a freedom of information request 
from 320 councils in England, Scotland, Wales and Northern Ireland. Between them these 
councils operate 66,617 vehicles. 

Bristol City Council was recently forced to suspend its roll-out of a new vehicle fleet after 
purchasing dozens of diesel vehicles despite planning to introduce a city centre diesel ban. 

Of the 135 new vehicles already introduced for use across all the council’s services, 64 were 
diesel. The council said they were ‘purchased due to suitable petrol equivalents being 
unavailable’. 

https://www.localgov.co.uk/Vast-majority-of-council-vehicles-run-on-diesel-despite-pollution-
concerns/48675 

 

BREXIT 

 
Brexit isn’t the only unfinished business for this new government 

After a historic win, Boris Johnson’s government is now left to deliver on their mandate to get 

Brexit done and finish what they started. But that isn't all they need to do, Local authority 
finances are in a dire state after a decade of cuts with councils up and down the country 
struggling to keep basic statutory services going. Many of the acute service challenges local 
government faces: adult social care, children’s services and housing for example, have been 
growing in scale and intensity over the last ten years. 

Big global issues such as climate change, technology and economic disruption continue to make 
themselves felt at local level in unpredictable ways and many of the underlying questions, 
around localism, democracy, place and power are the same issues we were discussing at the 
beginning of the decade. 

https://www.publicfinance.co.uk/opinion/2019/12/brexit-isnt-only-unfinished-business-new-
government 
 

  

57

https://www.autoexpress.co.uk/car-news/108622/is-your-council-a-clean-air-hypocrite
https://www.localgov.co.uk/Bristol-backpedals-on-diesel-vehicle-acquisition/48625
https://www.localgov.co.uk/Vast-majority-of-council-vehicles-run-on-diesel-despite-pollution-concerns/48675
https://www.localgov.co.uk/Vast-majority-of-council-vehicles-run-on-diesel-despite-pollution-concerns/48675
https://www.publicfinance.co.uk/topics/local-government
https://www.publicfinance.co.uk/topics/local-government
https://www.publicfinance.co.uk/hot-topics/health
https://www.publicfinance.co.uk/hot-topics/data-technology
https://www.publicfinance.co.uk/opinion/2019/12/brexit-isnt-only-unfinished-business-new-government
https://www.publicfinance.co.uk/opinion/2019/12/brexit-isnt-only-unfinished-business-new-government


 
 

22 
 

Level of 
Assurance 

Design Opinion Findings from review Effectiveness Opinion  Findings from review 

Substantial Appropriate 
procedures and 
controls in place to  
mitigate the key  
risks.  

There is a sound 
system of internal 
control designed to 
achieve system 
objectives.  

No, or only minor,   
exceptions found in   
testing of the 
procedures  and 
controls.  

The controls that are 
in place are being 
consistently applied.  

Moderate 
 
 

In the main, there are 
appropriate  
procedures and  
controls in place to  
mitigate the key risks  
reviewed albeit with  
some that are not  
fully effective.  

Generally a sound   
system of internal   
control designed to   
achieve system   
objectives with some  
exceptions.  

A small number of 
exceptions found in 
testing of the 
procedures and 
controls.  

Evidence of non 
compliance with some 
controls, that may put 
some of the system 
objectives at risk.   

Limited 
 
 

A number of significant 
gaps identified in the 
procedures and  
controls in key areas.   
Where practical, 
efforts should be made 
to address in-  
year.  

System of internal  
controls is weakened 
with system objectives 
at risk of not being  
achieved.  

A number of 
reoccurring exceptions 
found in testing of the 
procedures and 
controls. Where  
practical, efforts 
should be made to 
address in-  
year.  

Non-compliance with 
key procedures and 
controls places the  
system objectives at 
risk.  

No 
 
 

For all risk areas  
there are significant 
gaps in the  
procedures and  
controls. Failure to  
address in-year  
affects the quality of  
the organisation’s  
overall internal  
control framework.  

Poor system of internal 
control.  

Due to absence of 
effective controls and 
procedures, no 
reliance can be placed 
on their operation. 
Failure to address in-
year affects  the 
quality of the   
organisation’s overall   
internal control   
framework.  

Non compliance 
and/or  compliance 
with   
inadequate controls.  

APPENDIX 1 
OPINION SIGNIFICANCE DEFINITION 

Audit Recommendation made 
Priority 
Level 

Manager 
Responsible 

Due Date Current Progress 

     Trust Comments: 
 
IA Comments: 

     Trust Comments: 
 
IA Comments: 

     Trust Comments: 
 
IA Comments: 

     Trust Comments: 
 
IA Comments: 

 OPINION AND RECOMMENDATION SIGNIFICANCE DEFINITION 

 

 

 

 

  

58



 
 
 
 

 

 

FOR MORE INFORMATION: 

FIRSTNAME SURNAME 

+44 (0)XX XXXX XXXX 
firstname.surname@bdo.co.uk 

This publication has been carefully prepared, but it has been written in general 
terms and should be seen as broad guidance only. The publication cannot be relied 
upon to cover specific situations and you should not act, or refrain from acting, upon 
the information contained therein without obtaining specific professional advice. 
Please contact BDO LLP to discuss these matters in the context of your particular 
circumstances. BDO LLP, its partners, employees and agents do not accept or 
assume any liability or duty of care for any loss arising from any action taken or not 
taken by anyone in reliance on the information in this publication or for any decision 
based on it. 

BDO LLP, a UK limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales under 
number OC305127, is a member of BDO International Limited, a UK company limited 
by guarantee, and forms part of the international BDO network of independent 
member firms. A list of members' names is open to inspection at our registered 
office, 55 Baker Street, London W1U 7EU. BDO LLP is authorised and regulated by 
the Financial Conduct Authority to conduct investment business.  

BDO is the brand name of the BDO network and for each of the BDO Member Firms.  

BDO Northern Ireland, a partnership formed in and under the laws of Northern 
Ireland, is licensed to operate within the international BDO network of independent 
member firms.  

© 2019 BDO LLP. All rights reserved. 

 

www.bdo.co.uk 

  

59

http://www.bdo.co.uk/


This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

INTERNAL AUDIT FOLLOW UP OF 
RECOMMENDATIONS REPORT 

Oxford City Council – Fusion Follow up 

January 2020 

61

Agenda Item 6



 
 
 
 

 

 
 

The Fusion follow up report was limited on both Operational effectiveness and Design as a result we 

carried out a separate follow-up review on the Fusion review to ensure they were implemented. 

FUSION RECOMMENDATIONS 

 

• Nine recommendations are due for follow-up with recommendations due prior to the end of 

December 2019 

• Previous recommendations may simply have a revised date that is post this Committee and 

therefore will be picked up at the next Committee 

• Of the Nine recommendations: 

• Seven Medium recommendations are fully implemented 

• Two Medium recommendations are incomplete and have been revised for the 

second time. 

 

 

 

 

  

Summary 

62



 
 
 
 

 

 

 

Audit Recommendation made 
Priority 
Level 

Manager 
Responsible 

Due Date Current Progress 

Fusion Fusion to ensure they speak 
with their back 
office/central staff to 
identify how these 
communications are issued 
and how responses are 
managed to ensure only 
text messages and emails go 
out to individuals who will 
be followed up 

M Lucy Cherry 31/03/2019 
31/10/2019 

Council’s Comments: 

Feedback is completed via 
verbal communication. 
Recent examples where 
this has taken place 
include customer based 
issues at the Lys and OSP. 

 

IA Comments: 

It was verbally 
communicated to staff 
which fulfils the 
recommendation. 

Fusion Customer forums/panel 
meetings dates should be 
set out for the year ahead 
and all must take place at 
the date expected 

M Lucy Cherry 31/03/2019 
31/10/2019 

Council’s Comments: 

Meet the Manager dates 
have been set in Nov/Dec 
for the next 12 months, as 
displayed on our website. 
Formal panel meetings are 
set by the panels and as 
such are only set some 
three months ahead. 

 

IA Comments: 

Customers are made aware 
of dates to attend 
forums/panels and 
opportunities to meet 
management in advance. 

Fusion Feedback surveys from each 
group should take place at 
set frequencies which are 
agreed for the year in 
advance 

M Lucy Cherry 31/03/2019 
31/10/2019 

Council’s Comments: 

Feedback surveys are a 
contractual requirement, 
being completed every 24 
months. They are due next 
in 2020. 

 

IA Comments: 

Implementation of surveys 
is complete and frequency 
is clear. 

Fusion Protocols should be set out 
for when minutes of 
customer forum/panel 
meetings are issued post a 
meeting – this should be no 
longer than two weeks after 
any given meeting 

M Lucy Cherry 31/03/2019 
31/10/2019 

Council’s Comments: 

On site meeting notes are 
emailed to customers 
within two weeks of the 
forum/panel meeting and 
displayed on the website. 

 

IA Comments: 

The recommendation has 

Recommendations: Complete 

63



 
 
 
 

 

been implemented 

Fusion Customer forum/panel 
attendees should be 
emailed/written to by 
letter to ask what format 
they would like minutes in. 
This should then be logged 
and agreed protocols 
followed 

M Lucy Cherry 31/03/2019 
31/10/2019 

Council’s Comments: 

Customers have been 
consulted in formal 
meetings. This is agreed to 
suit all attending the 
meeting. 

 

IA Comments: 

The recommendation has 
been implemented as 
customers have been 
consulted. 

Fusion A customer forum/panel 
member orientation pack 
should be developed which 
sets out expectations and 
responsibilities of attendees 
and issued within 1 month 
of a new member joining 

M Lucy Cherry 31/03/2019 
31/10/2019 

Council’s Comments: 

A customer forum/panel 
orientation pack is being 
developed and sent it 
members. This will provide 
them with information 
about the panel and their 
responsibilities. 

 

IA Comments: 

The orientation pack 
provides panel members 
with adequate information 
about their responsibilities. 

Fusion Fusion should set an action 
plan for each site about 
how to achieve greater 
engagement with customer 
forum/panels and 
demonstrate improvement 
to the Council 

M Lucy Cherry 31/03/2019 
31/10/2019 

Council’s Comments: 

Fusion has taken the 
approach to both run 
formal panel meetings and 
informal ‘Meet the 
Manager’ sessions in order 
to fully engage with all 
users. 

 

IA Comments: 

Informal and formal 
engagement with 
customers is in place.  

 

 

  

64



 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

Audit Recommendation made 
Priority 
Level 

Manager 
Responsible 

Due Date Current Progress 

      

Fusion Fusion should invest in the 
social media platforms to 
either direct customer to 
the main complaint system 
or use these platforms more 
effectively as a complaint 
forum by advertising this as 
such 

M Lucy Cherry 
 

30/06/2019 
31/10/2019 
29/02/2020 

Council’s Comments: 

This recommendation is 
under development. 

 

IA Comments: 

The recommendation is 
incomplete but in progress. 
Therefore, this will be 
followed up as part of the 
next follow up process. 

Fusion Fusion should identify all 
means by which customers 
can complain in addition to 
Market Force and analyse 
these sources and report 
them to the Council to 
ensure completeness in the 
data reported 

M Lucy Cherry 
 

30/06/2019 
29/02/2020 

Council’s Comments: 

Fusion has always had a 
formal complaint reporting 
process. They have been 
reviewing the effectiveness 
of the existing system and 
how they continuously 
improve awareness. 
Additionally, Fusion have 
very recently replaced 
their previous supplier ‘ 
Market Force’ with another 
provider, who Council 
Officers have met with and 
will regularly do so in the 
future.   

IA Comments: 

The market force system 
has now been replaced and 
all avenues of complaints 
have been reviewed. 
Fusion continues to seek 
advice from the software 
providers regularly. 
However, Fusion is yet to 
confirm whether they have 
comprehensive feedback 
reported to the Council. 
Therefore, this will be 
followed up in the next 
follow-up process. 

  

Recommendations: Incomplete 

65



 
 
 
 

 

 

FOR MORE INFORMATION: 

GURPREET DULAY 

+44 (0)121 265 7214 (DDI) 

+44 (0)787 055 5214 (Mobile) 

Gurpreet.dulay@bdo.co.uk 

This publication has been carefully prepared, but it has been written in general 
terms and should be seen as broad guidance only. The publication cannot be relied 
upon to cover specific situations and you should not act, or refrain from acting, upon 
the information contained therein without obtaining specific professional advice. 
Please contact BDO LLP to discuss these matters in the context of your particular 
circumstances. BDO LLP, its partners, employees and agents do not accept or 
assume any liability or duty of care for any loss arising from any action taken or not 
taken by anyone in reliance on the information in this publication or for any decision 

based on it. 

BDO LLP, a UK limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales under 
number OC305127, is a member of BDO International Limited, a UK company limited 
by guarantee, and forms part of the international BDO network of independent 
member firms. A list of members' names is open to inspection at our registered 
office, 55 Baker Street, London W1U 7EU. BDO LLP is authorised and regulated by 
the Financial Conduct Authority to conduct investment business.  

BDO is the brand name of the BDO network and for each of the BDO Member Firms.  

BDO Northern Ireland, a partnership formed in and under the laws of Northern 
Ireland, is licensed to operate within the international BDO network of independent 

member firms.  

© 2019 BDO LLP. All rights reserved. 

 

www.bdo.co.uk 

  

66

http://www.bdo.co.uk/


 

 

 

 
 

INTERNAL AUDIT FOLLOW UP OF 
RECOMMENDATIONS REPORT 

Oxford City Council 

January 2020 

67

Agenda Item 7



 
 
 
 

 

 
 

FOLLOW UP GOING FORWARD - BDO RECOMMENDATIONS 

Following the issue of reports, all due high and medium recommendations will be followed up 

within this report.  

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

• 26 recommendations are due for follow-up with recommendations due prior to the end of 

December 2019 

• Previous recommendations may simply have a revised date that is post this Committee and 

therefore, will be picked up at the next Committee 

 

Of the 26 recommendations (Excluding Fusion Follow-up as reported separately): 

• One High and 12 Medium Recommendations were completed 

• Four High (Contract Management and Accounts Receivable) are incomplete. Contract 

Management has been issued with a 1st revised due date and Accounts Receivables has been 

issued with 2nd revised due date. Significant progress has been made against these 

recommendations and we have been assured that these recommendations will be 

completed by the next follow up.  

• 9 Medium Recommendations are incomplete and have been issued a 2nd or 3rd revised due 

date. 

 

Follow up Process 

 

As part of the follow-up process we issued all recommendations due for implementation on or 

before December 2019 on 4th November 2019. Recommendations due were sent to all responsible 

officers and the corresponding heads of service. We gave responsible officers 6 weeks to respond. 

We subsequently chased officers throughout November 2019.  

 

We are required to escalate non responses and/or recommendations with several revised due dates 

to the Operational Delivery Group (ODG). We have escalated all incomplete responses to the ODG. 

 

 

For all incomplete recommendations, we will: 

 

1. Continue to emphasise to staff to be realistic about the implementation dates when 

completing their management responses at the completion stage of each internal audit 

review 

2. Issue the recommendations tracker to all the relevant Heads of services on a monthly basis 

from the December audit committee onwards 

3. Issue reminder emails 6 weeks prior to the follow up review to ensure timely completion of 

each recommendation 

 

 

Summary 

68



 
 
 
 

 

 

  

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

Accounts Payable
& Procurement

Contract
Management

Health & Safety Investment
Properties

Accounts
Receivables

ICT Service Desk

Status of Recommendations Complete, Incomplete and 
Removed 

Complete Incomplete Moved to Low Removed

69



 
 
 
 

 

 

 

Audit Recommendation made 
Priority 
Level 

Manager 
Responsible 

Due Date Current Progress 

Accounts 
Payable & 
Procurement 

The Council should ensure 
that credit checks on all 
existing suppliers 
(including the case noted 
above) that do not have a 
retained credit report are 
completed. 

M Strategic 
Procurements 
Manager 

30/09/2019 
31/12/2019 

Council’s Comments: 

The Council have 
undertaken credit checks 
for prior suppliers that 
had not had a credit 
check. 

 

IA Comments: 

The recommendation has 
been implemented. 
Credit checks have been 
completed. 

Accounts 
Payable & 
Procurement 

The Procurement Team 
should be reminded by 
email that all contract 
notices over £25,000 
should be published on 
Contracts Finder in a 
timely manner. 
Subsequently, these should 
be checked by a member 
within the team on a 
quarterly basis to ensure 
the corresponding notices 
are published.   

M Strategic 
Procurements 
Manager 

31/10/2019 Council’s Comments: 

All procurements above 
£10k go on the 
procurement portal 
which links to Contracts 
Finder. Reports are run 
to check compliance. The 
last report was run and 
dealt with on 9 
September 2019. It shows 
the status of the 
Contracts Finder event on 
the portal. Any that were 
open were checked to 
ensure that they had 
been completed as 
necessary. 

 

IA Comments: 

The report has been run 
and has been checked 
and acted on by a 
member of the team. 

Accounts 
Payable & 
Procurement 

The data on ‘% of non-
compliant contracts’ 
should be reported 
without ODSL performance 
to obtain an accurate 
result of the Council’s 
performance 

M Strategic 
Procurements 
Manager 

31/10/2019 Council’s Comments: 

Non-compliant OJEU 
contracts are presented 
on a monthly basis as to 
the proportion of 
compliant and non-
compliant contracts. 

 

IA Comments: 

The KPI is monitored in 
the compliance 
spreadsheet. We 
reviewed this 
spreadsheet and was 
satisfied it provided 
monitoring of compliance 

Recommendations: Complete 

70



 
 
 
 

 

Accounts 
Payable & 
Procurement 

Reporting should be 
completed every month 
and any missed figures 
should be investigated 
with a written explanation 
by the line manager for 
the missing information 

M Contract 
Managers & 
Procurement 
Team 

31/10/2019 Council Comments: 

Corvu is updated monthly 
with figures from across 
the team. Please see Ref 
12 as an example of the 
last 6 months of figures 
input for one of the KPIs. 
The dates can be found in 
the box at the top of 
each screenshot. Missing 
figures are discussed 
within the team. 

 

IA Comments: 

IA reviewed the evidence 
provided and this was 
adequate to deem the 
recommendation as 
complete. 

Accounts 
Payable & 
Procurement 

Discussions should be 
sought with the head of 
procurement to reduce the 
noncompliance KPI 
threshold to a lower figure 

M Strategic 
Procurements 
Manager 

31/10/2019 
31/03/2020 

Council’s Comments: 

The recommendation 
following discussion is 
that a realistic threshold 
is 30%. Each quarter a 
report is run to check 
supplier spend against 
known contracts on the 
register. This highlights 
the possibility of off 
contract spend. 

 

IA Comments: 

We reviewed the report 
which outlines supplier 
spend this was adequate 
and in line with 
expectations 

Accounts 
Payable & 
Procurement 

Action plans should be 
created on how to monitor 
and manage non-compliant 
contracts and these should 
be monitored on a monthly 
basis 

M Strategic 
Procurements 
Manager 

31/10/2019 
 

Council’s Comments: 

Each quarter a report is 
run to check supplier 
spend against known 
contracts on the register. 
This is done for OCC and 
ODS. This highlights the 
possibility of off contract 
spend. Relevant service 
areas will be contacted 
should the figures be 
above the benchmark. 
ODS have recruited a new 
Procurement Manager 
since the last report so 
the hope is the figure will 
begin to reduce. Please 
see Ref 13 for the last 
report that was run and 
the compliance figure 
achieved. 

IA Comments: 

71



 
 
 
 

 

We reviewed the report 
which outlines supplier 
spend this was adequate 
and in line with 
expectations as a result 
we deem this 
recommendation as 
complete 

Contract 
Management 

The Contracts and 
Procurement Team should 
identify all contracts that 
have historically been 
contract managed by the 
County Council, they 
should also ensure that 
those involved are clear on 
the roles and 
responsibilities for 
managing the 
corresponding contract 
and implement contract 
management meetings 
where required 

H Contract 
Managers & 
Procurement 
Team 

30/11/2019 Council’s Comments: 

As of 1st February 2020 a 
new stationery contract 
has been implemented by 
the County Council. The 
Council are using this 
contract again and now 
have a copy. Contacts 
and roles are 
documented on the front 
page of this. 

 

IA Comments: 

The Council have showed 
that they are making 
additional efforts to 
ensure roles and 
responsibilities for 
managing the contracts 
are documented. 

Contract 
Management 

Contract Managers should 
be reminded of the 
requirement to maintain a 
risk register for their 
contracts 

M Procurement 
Team 

31/10/2019 Council’s Comments: 

Requirements to maintain 
risk registers has been 
introduced onto the 
contract handover to 
contract managers. 

 

IA Comments: 

Contract managers are 
now reminded that they 
have to maintain a risk 
register as part of the 
handover. 

Contract 
Management 

Risk registers should be 
updated quarterly 

M Contract 
Managers 

31/10/2019 
 

Council’s Comments: 

This is now included in 
the Contract Handover 
document see rfe 3 and 4 
of evidence 

 

IA comments 

The requirement of 
updating risk registers 
quarterly was included in 
the contract handover 
documents outlining the 
need to update risk 
registers quarterly this is 
deemed as complete 

72



 
 
 
 

 

Contract 
Management 

Where contracts have 
been identified as not 
having undergone the 
credit checks, checks 
should be conducted 

M Procurement 
Team 

31/10/2019 Council’s Comments: 

The Council have 
undertaken credit checks 
for prior suppliers that 
had not had a credit 
check. 

 

IA Comments: 

We reviewed some of the 
credit checks that had 
not previously been 
completed and were 
satisfied that they had 
been done. 

Contract 
Management 

Contract managers should 
be reminded of their duty 
to ensure that their 
contractors are up to date 
with their contractual 
requirements in relation to 
insurance, anti-bribery and 
GDPR 

M Procurement 
Team 

31/10/2019 Council’s Comments: 

As part of the contract 
handover documentation 
process, the procurement 
team use this opportunity 
to remind contract 
managers that they 
should ensure their 
contractors are up to 
date on GDPR, anti-
bribery, etc. 

 

IA Comments: 

The handover document 
contained reminders 
about contractual 
requirements. 

Health & 
Safety 

The Council should 
regularly monitor and 
track when new starters 
have completed their 
corporate induction, 
ensuring that training has 
been completed within a 
certain time period after 
starting, for example two 
months. In situations of 
cancellations, there should 
be an appropriate 
escalation to managers to 
ensure compliance. 

M Chris Harvey 
& Tim Vine 

30/11/2019 Council’s Comments: 

For the case that was 
identified in the audit as 
having no corporate 
induction despite being 
employed for 4 years, 
this person has now had 
their corporate 
induction. Going forward, 
the HR team will run a 
quarterly report to 
identify employees that 
have not had their 
corporate induction. 
They will make the 
employees and their line 
managers aware of the 
requirement to complete 
the corporate induction 
and the completion of 
mandatory training will 
be a necessity to pass the 
probation, as per the 
Probationary Policy. No 
evidence available as it 
has just been rolled out. 

 

IA Comments: 

73



 
 
 
 

 

Previous non-compliance 
has been rectified and 
communication with HR 
has been established to 
ensure all employees 
complete the corporate 
induction and thus their 
health & safety training. 

Investment 
Properties 

We recommend that the 
communication between 
the property team and the 
debtor team should be 
enhanced to allow the 
property team to take 
action against property 
debtors. In addition, the 
debtor team should embed 
a policy to cover any 
vacant post to mitigate 
the impact of staffing 
issues to an acceptable 
level. 

M Jane Winfield 
& Neil 
Markham  

31/12/2019 Council’s Comments: 

Meetings have been 
scheduled into the diaries 
of the Incomes Team 
Leader and the 
Regeneration and Major 
Projects Service Manager 
on a monthly basis to 
review the customer 
arrears list. These are 
examined and actions are 
decided as appropriate. 
These are not minuted 
but a log is retained and 
updated after each 
meeting. We reviewed 
the log for the meeting 
on 4 November 2019 and 
was satisfied that there 
were clear actions 
decided for customers on 
the arrears list.  

 

Additionally, there is no 
policy on filling vacant 
staff positions as the 
Debtors team have a 
generic working model 
whereby staff are rotated 
between roles to improve 
their skills in a range of 
areas. This acts as a 
control to keep staff 
levels at an adequate 
level while recruitment is 
taking place. 

 

IA Comments: 

The meetings have been 
put in place between the 
teams and a generic 
working model has been 
implemented to alleviate 
limited staff levels in the 
income team. 

 

  

74



 
 
 
 

 

 

 

Audit 
Recommendation 

made 
Priority 
Level 

Manager 
Responsible 

Due Date Current Progress 

Contract 
Management 

All contracts should 
have KPIs, and these 
should be devised 
where missing 

H Contract 
Managers/Procur
ement Team 

30/11/2019 
31/03/2020 

Council’s Comments: 

The post of Strategic 
Procurement and 
Payments Manager is 
currently vacant.  There 
are plans to fill the post 
in the new year. At that 
point an exercise to give 
guidance and advice to 
managers will be carried 
out to address the area 
of contract management 
which includes KPIs and 
risk management.  

IA Comments: 

The recommendation is 
incomplete and has been 
provided a 1st revised 
due date. 

Contract 
Management 

The Contract 
Management 
Framework should be 
updated to reflect 
that KPIs are not 
optional and this 
should be 
communicated to all 
contract managers. 
Contract Managers 
should discuss how 
they will adapt this 
into their current 
contracts 

H Contract 
Managers & 
Procurement 
Team 

30/11/2019 
31/03/2020 

Council’s Comments: 

The post of Strategic 
Procurement and 
Payments Manager is 
currently vacant.  There 
are plans to fill the post 
in the new year. At that 
point an exercise to give 
guidance and advice to 
managers will be carried 
out to address the area 
of contract management 
which includes KPIs and 
risk management.  

IA Comments: 

The recommendation is 
incomplete and has been 
provided a 1st revised 
due date. 

Contract 
Management 

Annual spot-checks 
should be performed 
on a sample of 
contracts by the 
Procurement team to 
ensure these are in 
place 

M Procurement 
Team 

31/10/2019 
31/03/2020 

Council’s Comments: 

An annual spot check in 
place for end of 
financial year - March 
2020. 

 

IA Comments: 

We will follow this up in 
March 2020 to assess 
whether the spot check 
has been completed. 

Contract 
Management 

If the Council no 
longer use the 

M Procurement 
Team 

31/10/2019 
31/03/2020 

Council’s Comments: 

The post of Strategic 

Recommendations: Incomplete 

75



 
 
 
 

 

contract designations, 
the guidance should 
be updated to reflect 
this 

Procurement and 
Payments Manager is 
currently vacant.  There 
are plans to fill the post 
in the new year. At that 
point an exercise to give 
guidance and advice to 
managers will be carried 
out to address the area 
of contract management 
which includes KPIs and 
risk management.  

IA Comments: 

The recommendation is 
incomplete. 

Contract 
Management 

If the designations 
should be in use, a 
contract register 
should be kept of the 
designations and the 
monthly checks should 
be performed on the 
platinum contracts by 
the procurement team 

M Procurement 
Team 

31/10/2019 
31/03/2020 

Council’s Comments: 

The post of Strategic 
Procurement and 
Payments Manager is 
currently vacant.  There 
are plans to fill the post 
in the new year. At that 
point an exercise to give 
guidance and advice to 
managers will be carried 
out to address the area 
of contract management 
which includes KPIs and 
risk management.  

IA Comments: 

The recommendations 
above are incomplete 
and have been provided 
a 1st revised due date. 

Contract 
Management 

Spot checks should be 
implemented to 
ensure this system is 
in operation. Staff 
should be clear on 
where they must store 
results of the spot 
checks 

M Procurement 
Team 

31/10/2019 
31/03/2020 

Council’s Comments: 

The post of Strategic 
Procurement and 
Payments Manager is 
currently vacant.  There 
are plans to fill the post 
in the new year. At that 
point an exercise to give 
guidance and advice to 
managers will be carried 
out to address the area 
of contract management 
which includes KPIs and 
risk management.  

 

IA Comments: 

The recommendation is 
incomplete and has been 
provided a 1st revised 
due date. 

Accounts 
Receivables 

Income officers should 
be more proactive in 
following up the aged 
debt, contacting 
customers in between 

H Neil Markham 30/04/2019 
31/12/2019 
31/03/2020 

Council’s Comments: 

There has been some 
improvement in chasing 
up aged debts but there 

76



 
 
 
 

 

the issuing reminder 
letters until the debt 
is recovered in full. 
Particularly after the 
L7 letters are sent, 
payment plans should 
be pursued by Incomes 
Officers. 

is still work to be done 
to ensure that 100% of 
cases are followed up 
exactly in line with our 
escalations procedures. 
The Council have been 
without an Assistant 
Incomes Officer since 
September 2019 and are 
trying to recruit for this 
role to support improved 
debt recovery. In the 
meantime the Incomes 
Team are operating a 
generic working model 
to increase resources.  

 

IA Comments: 

Recommendation is 
incomplete but progress 
is being made to 
complete it. Therefore 
we have provided a 2nd 
revised due date and 
will review the progress. 

Accounts 
Receivables 

The issuing of the 14 
day, 45 day and L7 
reminder letters 
should be automated 
to ensure that they 
are sent to the 
customer in a timely 
manner. 

H Neil Markham 30/04/2019 
31/12/2019 
31/03/2020 

Council’s Comments: 

No automation has been 
implemented as other 
system based issues are 
taking precedence. 

 

IA Comments: 

The Council still intend 
to implement the 
recommendation but 
have not completed it 
yet. Therefore we have 
provided a 2nd revised 
due date and will review 
the progress. 

Accounts 
Receivables 

The Council should 
provide adequate 
levels of 
training/guidance on 
levels of due diligence 
required based on the 
value of services 
provided for the 
customer or the type 
of organisation they 
are. 

M Neil Markham 30/04/2019 
30/09/2019 
31/12/2019 

31/01/2020 

Council’s Comments: 

The Sundry Debtors 
guide has been 
completed and will be 
published on our 
intranet in January 
2020. Rollout has been 
delayed to enable us to 
expand the corporate 
due diligence (CDD) 
section. Council officers 
creating customers in 
Agresso will need to 
indicate the level of CDD 
that was completed.  

 

IA Comments: 

There has been 
significant steps taken 

77



 
 
 
 

 

towards completing this 
recommendation. Once 
the policy is published 
the recommendation 
will be complete. 
Therefore, we have 
provided a 3rd revised 
due date to check the 
progress. 

Accounts 
Receivables 

All departments across 
the Council should be 
given adequate levels 
of training on the 
importance of due 
diligence, how to 
successfully carry out 
due diligence, and the 
consequences for the 
Council of the failure 
to complete due 
diligence. 

M Neil Markham 30/04/2019 
30/09/2019 
31/12/2019 

31/03/2020 

Council’s Comments: 

Training sessions are yet 
to be held to inform 
staff on how to conduct 
due diligence. 

 

IA Comments: 

This recommendation 
remains incomplete. A 
3rd revised due date has 
been allocated. 

ICT Service 
Desk 

Management should 
review the Access 
Control Guide and 
update as necessary, 
regarding the approval 
of system access 
requests and the 
requirement and 
responsibility for 
periodically reviewing 
access controls. All 
users and managers 
should be aware and 
accountable for their 
responsibilities in 
user’s access control. 

M Henry Routledge 30/05/2019 
31/08/2019 
31/12/2019 
31/03/2020 

Council’s Comments: 

A draft Access Control 
policy has been 
produced and is awaiting 
director sign off. 

The Council are also in 
the process of writing a 
more specific policy to 
cover this area as whilst 
the other policy covers 
it in a general sense, we 
feel it beneficial to 
create this new policy. 

 

IA Comments: 

A significant step 
towards the 
implementation of the 
recommendation has 
been taken and is only 
awaiting approval of the 
policy before it is 
complete. Therefore we 
will follow up in the 
next audit committee. 

Health & 
Safety 

The Council should 
review their fire risk 
assessments within a 
three year cycle. 
However, where the 
property type carries a 
higher risk, the risk 
assessment should be 
completed 
annually. 

M Claire Bateman 
& Johnathan 
Stone 

30/11/2019 The responsible officers 
were contacted on 3 
November 2019 initially 
for a response and have 
been contact since on 10 
December 2019. 

Health & 
Safety 

The assessment should 
be reviewed often 
enough for it to be up-

M Claire Bateman 
& Johnathan 
Stone 

30/11/2019 The responsible officers 
were contacted on 3 
November 2019 initially 

78



 
 
 
 

 

to-date with any 
changes to the risks to 
the premises. 

for a response and have 
been contact since on 10 
December 2019. 

 

 

79



 
 
 
 

 

 

FOR MORE INFORMATION: 

GURPREET DULAY 

+44 (0)121 265 7214 (DDI) 

+44 (0)787 055 5214 (Mobile) 

Gurpreet.dulay@bdo.co.uk 

This publication has been carefully prepared, but it has been written in general 
terms and should be seen as broad guidance only. The publication cannot be relied 
upon to cover specific situations and you should not act, or refrain from acting, upon 
the information contained therein without obtaining specific professional advice. 
Please contact BDO LLP to discuss these matters in the context of your particular 
circumstances. BDO LLP, its partners, employees and agents do not accept or 
assume any liability or duty of care for any loss arising from any action taken or not 
taken by anyone in reliance on the information in this publication or for any decision 

based on it. 

BDO LLP, a UK limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales under 
number OC305127, is a member of BDO International Limited, a UK company limited 
by guarantee, and forms part of the international BDO network of independent 
member firms. A list of members' names is open to inspection at our registered 
office, 55 Baker Street, London W1U 7EU. BDO LLP is authorised and regulated by 
the Financial Conduct Authority to conduct investment business.  

BDO is the brand name of the BDO network and for each of the BDO Member Firms.  

BDO Northern Ireland, a partnership formed in and under the laws of Northern 
Ireland, is licensed to operate within the international BDO network of independent 

member firms.  

© 2019 BDO LLP. All rights reserved. 

 

www.bdo.co.uk 

  

80

http://www.bdo.co.uk/


 
 
To:  Audit and Governance Committee 
 
Date: 9 January 2020 
 
Report of: Head of Financial Services 
 
Title of Report: Risk Management Reporting as at 30 November 2019. 
 

 
Summary and Recommendations 

 
Purpose of report: 

To update the Committee on both corporate and service risks as at 30 November 2019. 
 
Key decision: No  

 
Executive lead member: Councillor Ed Turner 

 
Policy Framework: Efficient and Effective Council 

 
Recommendation:  

That the Committee reviews the risk management report and notes its contents  
 

 
Appendices: Appendix A Corporate Risk Register 
 
Risk Scoring Matrix 

 
1. The Council operates a ‘five by five’ scoring matrix based on probability and impact. 

The methodology for scoring risks is set out below along with a copy of the scoring 
matrix or ‘heat map’. 
 

2. It is possible to achieve the same score but end up with a different result in the heat 
map. For example if the probability of an event occurring is high but the impact is 
low it is likely to have a lower rating on the heat map. However, the higher the 
potential impact score the more likely the event will be classed as a red risk on the 
matrix. 

 
3. The risk prioritisation matrix is shown below. 

 

81

Agenda Item 8



Probability             

Almost 
Certain 

5 5 10 15 20 25 

Likely 4 4 8 12 16 20 

Possible 3 3 6 9 12 15 

Unlikely 2 2 4 6 8 10 

Rare 1 1 2 3 4 5 

    1 2 3 4 5 

  Impact Insignificant Minor Moderate Major Severe 

 
 

Key: Green Amber Red 

 
      

 
Risk Identification 

 
4. Corporate Risks – The Corporate Risk Register (CRR) is reviewed by the 

Corporate Management Team (CMT) on a periodic basis, any new risks are 
incorporated into a revised version of the CRR.  Risk owners of corporate risks are 
generally Executive Directors. 

 
5. Service Risks – Service Area risks are reviewed periodically by Heads of Service 

and Service Managers.  The Financial Accounting Manager has oversight of all 
risks and on a quarterly basis will review service risks to determine whether they 
should be considered for inclusion in the Corporate Risk Register. 

 
6. Project and Programme Risk – The Council adopts the principles of Prince2 and 

agile methodologies in addition to recognised industry standards in construction for 
managing projects. Incorporated within these methodologies is a robust process for 
the management of risk within a project environment.  Each project is managed by 
the Project Manager who controls and co-ordinates all aspects of the project 
through to conclusion. 

 
Corporate Risk Register - 30th November 2019 

7. The Audit and Governance Committee receives information on risk on a quarterly 
basis.  Given the timing of the Committee the Corporate Risk Register attached at 
Appendix A is as at 30 November.  

 
8. The number of Red risks has reduced from three to one. 

 
9. Details of the Red risk is as follows:- 

 

 Housing – the Council has key priorities around housing which include 
ensuring housing delivery and supply for the City of Oxford and enabling 
sufficient house building and investment. Insufficient housing in Oxford leads 

82



to an increase in homelessness which has an impact on residents. There are 
also health and quality of life issues. The Council is implementing delivery 
methods for temporary accommodation and accommodation for 
homelessness prevention which include a rent guarantee scheme, a growth 
deal to facilitate additional affordable housing and a tranche of property 
purchases to be delivered via real lettings. In addition the Council’s housing 
companies are in the process of constructing new affordable homes and the 
Cabinet has approved plans which will result in the Council’s Housing 
Revenue Account (“HRA”) purchasing the social housing using its new 
borrowing headroom, following the removal of the HRA borrowing cap by 
central government. 

 
10.  No risks have been closed in the period.  
 
11. The table below shows the levels of Red, Amber and Green current risks over the 

last 12 months. 
 

Current Risk 
Q4 

2018/19 
Q1 

2019/20 
Q2 

2019/20 
Q3 

2019/20 

Red 1 1 3 1 

Amber 9 10 8 9 

Green 2 1 1 2 

         

Total risks 12 12 12 12  

 
Service Risk Registers 

 
12. Each year as part of the service planning process, all service risks are reviewed, 

those no longer relevant are deleted, and any new ones are added. 
 

13. The table below shows the number of service risks as at the 30 November 
compared with the last 12 months.  

 

Current Risk 
 

Q4  
2018/19 

 
Q1 

2019/20 

 
Q2 

2019/20 

 
Q3 

 2019/20 

Red 1 2 3 3 

Amber 34 37 34 35 

Green 17 12 10 9 

Total risks 52 51 47 47 

New risks in 
quarter 

0  4 0 0 

Closed 0 5 4 0 

 
14. The number of Red risks has remained at three. 

 
15. Details of the Red risks are as follows:-  

 

83



 Planning Services - this relates to new partnership challenges to ensure the 
Oxford Growth strategy is supported. Brexit and local political changes could 
result in a review of the housing numbers which may result in plans being 
withdrawn or partnerships dissolved. This is being closely monitored across 
relevant departments within Oxford City Council. 

 

 Planning Services – this relates to opposition to emerging statutory plans. The 
Local Plan 2036 is emerging and with changes to the National Planning Policy 
Framework and local political changes, this has increased the risk of legal 
challenges and the need for evidence to support the Council’s position. A 
communication strategy is being developed for all key planning and regulatory 
projects.  

 

 Financial Services – this relates to Treasury Management and the safety of 
investments. This risk is constantly Red because of the potentially high impact, 
although the probability of a loss occurring is rated as “possible” due to the 
controls the Council has in place around counterparty selection and duration of 
investment. 

 
Climate Change / Environmental Impact 

16. There are no specific impacts arising directly from this report. 
 
Equalities impact 

17. There are no equalities impacts arising directly from this report 
 
Financial Implications 

18. There are no financial implications arising directly from this report.  
 
Legal Implications 

19. There are no legal implications directly relevant to this report but having proper 
arrangements to manage risk throughout the organisation is an important 
component of good corporate governance and good business management. 

 
 

Name and contact details of author:- 
Name:  Alison Nash 

Job title:  Finance Officer (Insurance) 
Service Area / Department:  Financial Services 
Tel:  01865 252048  e-mail:  anash@oxford.gov.uk  

 

List of background papers: None. 

84

mailto:anash@oxford.gov.uk


Ref Title Risk description Opp/ 
threat Cause Consequence I P I P I P Control description Due date Status Progress Action Owner

Both Real Lettings and OCCs own 
property fund purchases are on 
programme.  A further tranche of property 
purchase to be delivered via real lettings 

31-Mar-2020 In Progress 90% Dave Scholes

Continuing to work with Registerd 
Provider partners to enable supply of 
more affordable housing through s.106

31-Mar-2020 In Progress 50% Dave Scholes

Deliver OCHL development programme 
and develop new business plan to both 
increase and speed up delivery

31-Mar-2020 In Progress 70% Stephen Clarke

Delivery of regeneration schemes, 
including Blackbird Leys.

31-Mar-2023 In Progress 15% Stephen Clarke

Housing delivery test & housing delivery 
programme in planning and better joint 
working across organisation

31-Mar-2020 In Progress 50% Carolyn 
Ploszynski

More Council resource towards 
development of homes

31-Mar-2020 In Progress 50% Alan Wylde

The Council together with other 
Oxfordshire Councils have secured a 
Growth Deal including £60m to facilitate 
additional affordable housing. 19/20 is 
year 2 of the delivery programme.

31-Mar-2020 In Progress 80% Stephen Clarke

CRR-031-18-
19

Economic Growth Local, national or international 
factors adversely affect the 
economic growth of the City

T Terms of and impact of exit 
from the EU and Single 
Market resulting in the 
termination or suspension of 
investment decisions. 
Moreover structural changes 
and economic uncertainties 
are affecting consumption on 
the High Street and in turn 
affecting the viability of some 
retail, hospitality and 
catering businesses

Uncertainty and loss of 
market access may result in 
increased cost of trade with 
EU leading to adverse local 
macro-economic & operating 
conditions resulting in 
reduced economic growth for 
the city, a weaker local 
economy, hampering our 
ability to raise revenue 
through business rates as 
well as significant job losses. 
Loss of funding for key 
economic & research 
programmes and well as 
reduced FDI flows. 
Uncertainty about future visa 
requirements for EU workers 
and visitors may reduce 
labour supply as well as 
tourist flows limiting growth

1-Jun-2018 Tom Bridgman 5 4 4 3 4 3 An informal Brexit impact 
group of key employers has 
been set up. We have also 
been feeding into various 
national papers and briefings 
which are designed to inform 
the Government's 
negotiating position. Also 
undertaking business 
surveys.

Discuss with employers & Growth Board 
to understand emerging impact of Brexit. 
Update & develop Economic 
Development & City Centre Vision to 
respond to evolving economic 
environment. Develop policy for 
"meanwhile uses" across retail & other 
workspace

31-Jan-2020 In Progress 30% Tom Bridgman

Ensure companies are on schedule to 
deliver returns to Council

31-Mar-2020 In Progress 50% Nigel Kennedy

Keep abreast of changes to Business 31-Mar-2020 In Progress 20% Nigel Kennedy
Regular monitoring of revenue and 31-Mar-2020 In Progress 10% Nigel Kennedy
Start budget setting early and drive 31-Mar-2020 In Progress 10% Nigel Kennedy
Develop and implement improved 
recruitment processes [incl. use of social 
media, 'staff stories' and other 
promotional material]

31-Mar-2020 In Progress 25% Paul Adams

Develop employer brand 31-Mar-2020 In Progress 25% Paul Adams
Develop greater understanding of 
reasons for staff leaving and obtain 
insight into their 'work experience' whilst 

31-Mar-2020 In Progress 40% Paul Adams

Development of 'talent pipeline' including 
work experience, apprenticeships, 
graduate placement, sponsoring students 
through qualification, etc.

31-Mar-2020 In Progress 40% Paul Adams

Review of employment offer for hard to fill 
and specialist roles [pay, flexible working 
practices, employee benefits]

31-Mar-2020 In Progress 40% Paul Adams

Formal Risk Summary

(Oxford)

As at: Nov-2019

Risk Date Raised Owner Gross Current Target Comments Controls

CRR-033-18-
19

Housing The Council has key priorities 
around Housing including 
ensuring housing delivery and 
supply for the City and 
enabling sufficient house 
building and investment

T Unable to deliver affordable 
and acceptable housing to a 
"required" standard

Insufficient housing in City
Increase in homelessness
Impact on residents
Health and quality of life 
issues
Adverse publicity
Reputation Risk
Perception of unfairness 
reinforces tensions around 
immigration

1-Jun-2018 Stephen Clarke 5 4 5 4 4 3

3 4

CRR-034-18-
19

Recruitment and 
retention of the 
workforce

The challenge of recruitment 
and retention in some service 
areas, and ensuring 
succession planning exists for 
critical hard to fill roles.

T • Proximity to London
• High cost of housing             
• Congested infrastructure 
and transport links

Reduced capacity to deliver, 
especially in high profile 
projects

1-Jun-2018 Helen Bishop 3 4 3 3 2 3

CRR-032-18-
19

Balancing and 
Delivery of the 
Financial Plan

Unable to balance the 
Medium Term Financial Plan 
and hence deliver the 
Council's Corporate Plan 
priorities

T "Reduced contribution from 
Council companies; 
Business Rates reform
Local Government finance 
reform
Unachievable savings and 

Increased use of balances to 
ensure that Council sets a 
balanced budget for next 4 
years.Re-active action taken 
to bring budget back into line

3 3 41-Jun-2018 Nigel Kennedy 4

Oxford City Council Corporate Risk Register Q3 November 2019

85



Ref Title Risk description Opp/ 
threat Cause Consequence I P I P I P Control description Due date Status Progress Action Owner

Formal Risk Summary

(Oxford)

As at: Nov-2019

Risk Date Raised Owner Gross Current Target Comments Controls

Delivery of Improved systems 31-Mar-2020 In Progress 50% Nigel Kennedy

Establish robust system of shareholder 
and scrutiny meetings for wholly owned 
companies

31-Dec-2019 In Progress 75% Anita J. Bradley

Governance over all joint ventures and 
companies

31-Mar-2020 In Progress 50% Nigel Kennedy

Internal audit of companies review by 31-Jul-2019 Completed 100% Nigel Kennedy
Presentation of updated business plan on 
a quarterly basis to shareholder - OCHL

31-Dec-2019 In Progress 80% Nigel Kennedy

Presentation of updated business plan on 
a quarterly basis to shareholder - ODS

31-Dec-2019 In Progress 80% Nigel Kennedy

Reporting to shareholder for Barton 31-Jul-2019 Ongoing 100% Nigel Kennedy
Reporting to shareholder for Oxwed 31-Jul-2019 Ongoing 100% Nigel Kennedy
Review dividend policy - OCHL 31-Mar-2020 In Progress 10% Nigel Kennedy
Strategic Review of OCHL 31-Mar-2020 In Progress 50% Nigel Kennedy
Update and improve ODS Operating 31-Mar-2020 In Progress 30% Nigel Kennedy
Build understanding of new Government 
administration's view on 
devolution/unitary, Growth Deal, Ox-Cam 
Arc & seek levers to influence around 

31-Dec-2019 In Progress 25% Caroline Green

Escalation of issues as they arise using 
Vfire

31-Dec-2019 In Progress 25% Caroline Green

All Services to review and sign-off their 
BC plans to ensure up-to-date.

30-Sep-2019 Ongoing 100% Bill Lewis

Assure ICT backup and restore 30-Sep-2018 Completed 100% Rocco 
CMT to approve software priority 
restoration list from all Services BC 

30-Jun-2019 Completed 100% Mike Newman

Desktop review of BCP 31-Dec-2019 In Progress 50% Bill Lewis
Implement alternative software to CITRIX 
to allow homeworking for own user 

31-Dec-2019 In Progress 95% Rocco 
Labellarte

Include ICT systems outages in business 
continuity plan tests.

1-Oct-2018 Completed 100% Mike Newman

Re-establish Risk Management Group 20-Feb-2019 Completed 100% Bill Lewis
Review existing ICT recovery plan to 
ensure up-to-date.

30-Sep-2018 Completed 100% Rocco 
Labellarte

Control measures relating to advocacy, 
clear communication, negotiation over 
our land assets, in particular at Seacourt 
and Redbridge Park and Ride sites 
(Seacourt extension/Redbridge as 
location for recycling transfer station)

31-Dec-2019 In Progress 50% Jo Colwell

Partnership with the EA led programme 
to deliver the Oxford Flood Alleviation 
Scheme

31-Mar-2020 In Progress 50% Jo Colwell

Reputational risk is shared across 
partners.

31-Dec-2019 In Progress 50% Jo Colwell

Council's emergency plan includes link to 
Crowded Spaces Evacuation Plan

30-Apr-2020 Ongoing 100% Mike Newman

Emergency plans for Council-operated 
buildings include dealing with a terrorist 
attack.(including building lock-down 
procedure)

30-Apr-2020 Ongoing 100% Mike Newman

Event plans include dealing with a 
terrorist attack.(including evacuation 

30-Apr-2020 Ongoing 100% Mike Newman

Physical barriers in place - temporary and 
permanent

30-Apr-2020 Ongoing 100% Mike Newman

Respond to intelligence received 30-Apr-2020 Ongoing 100% Mike Newman
Work with partners, particularly the Police 
and County Council, on mitigation 
measures

30-Apr-2020 In Progress 50% Tim Sadler

Create a dedicated H&S team 30-Jun-2018 Completed 100% Stephen Clarke
Introduce a bespoke IT system for 
monitoring compliance

31-Dec-2019 In Progress 50% Stephen Clarke

Recruit experienced H&S Manager and 
other team vacancies

30-Sep-2018 Completed 100% Stephen Clarke

Regular programme of  audits of 
performance to identify gaps in Process

30-Jun-2018 Ongoing 100% Stephen Clarke

Regular reporting of performance at 
corporate level

30-Jun-2018 Ongoing 100% Stephen Clarke

Review existing processes and systems 31-Mar-2019 Ongoing 100% Stephen Clarke

T Lack of skilled direction from 
Directors;
Lack of capacity
Lack of commercial focus       
Shortfalls in income 
forecasts                                 
Deficiencies in governance"

Reputational damage of 
failing companies 
Reduced financial returns to 
the Council impacting on 
MTFP

1-Jun-2018 Nigel Kennedy 4 3 3 3 3 3

CRR-037-18-
19

Local Government 
Reorganisation

Risk that the reorganisation or 
devolution is imposed to the 
detriment of the Council and 
the City

T The 2017 bid for an 
Oxfordshire-wide unitary 
authority has sat dormant 
since Government made 
clear it has no appetite to 
pursue this while Growth 

If debate is reopened:             
- Significant distraction of 
resources and focus  into 
making City's case in 
argument                  - 
Significant disruption to 

1-Jun-2018 Caroline Green 5 3 4 3 3 1

CRR-036-18-
19

Resilience of 
Trading Models

The Council Companies are 
not successful and fail to 
deliver outputs and financial 
returns

2 3

CRR-040-18-
19

Negative Impacts of 
Climate Change

Climate Change leads to a 
number of adverse social, 
health and environmental 
impacts on the City

T Oxford is prone to flood risk 
from fluvial or river sources 
(Cherwell and Thames/Isis) 
and in specific areas to 
pluvial or surface flooding 
from heavy rainfall.  For 
fluvial flooding heavy rainfall 
upstream normally gives 
Oxford between 24-48 hours 
to prepare and respond with 
flood protection.  There is no 

i f l i l fl di

Flooding, which is highly 
weather dependent; poor air 
quality

1-Jun-2018 Jo Colwell 4 3 3 3 3 3

CRR-038-18-
19

Business Continuity 
Planning and 
Disaster Recovery 
including ICT 
Recovery Plan

There is an adverse impact 
on continuous business 
operation due to unplanned 
events.

T • Disruptive event hindering 
access to building.
• Disruptive event affecting 
full functionality of building.
• Major technology incident 
(physical or cyber).

Non-delivery of business 
operation

T Oxford is an internationally 
known city and is a more 
likely target than cities and 
towns of a similar size.  
There are several areas 
where large numbers of 
people congregate - primary 
shopping areas and tourist 
attractions, transport hubs - 
that may be conducive and 
prone to attack

Dependent on nature of 
attack and where it occurs.  
Could result in lock down of 
buildings, including Council 
offices, severe travel 
disruption, need to disperse 
large numbers of people (to 
places pf safety).  Non-
delivery of Council services

1-Jun-2018 Tim Sadler 5

3 3 31-Jun-2018 Helen Bishop 3

2 5 2 5 2

CRR-044-18-
19

Health and Safety - 
Buildings

Failure to comply with the 
various H&S legislative 
requirements which ensure 
the safety of buildings

T Inadequate training, poor 
systems and procedures, 
failure to robustly monitor 
performance and address 
this.  
Inadequate resourcing and 
skills.
Inadequate maintenance of 
buildings

Corporate manslaughter. 
HSE investigation and 
substantial fines.  Loss of 
reputation

1-Jun-2018 Stephen Clarke 4 4 4 3 3 2

CRR-042-18-
19

Terrorism Terrorist incident in the city 
(most likely in the city centre) 
that adversely affects normal 
life in the city, including a 
negative impact on the 
Council's business, or targets 
an individual event (e.g. May 
Morning, St Giles' Fair, events 
in South Park)

86



Ref Title Risk description Opp/ 
threat Cause Consequence I P I P I P Control description Due date Status Progress Action Owner

Formal Risk Summary

(Oxford)

As at: Nov-2019

Risk Date Raised Owner Gross Current Target Comments Controls

CRR-039-18-
19

Delivery of Services 
by External 
Suppliers/Partnersh
ips / Supply Chain

The negative performance of 
suppliers has a direct impact 
on the Councils ability to 
achieve its goals

T Failure of key supplier (i.e. 
Fusion) or reductions in 
funding and/or financial 
pressures on the councils 
critical service partners may 
place additional burdens 
/demands on the council and 
poorer services outcomes 
for citizens and potential 
risks to our supply chain.

Lack of coordinated 
response or weak 
relationships with partners 
leads to withdrawal of 
services, increasing the 
burden on City Council 
services and poorer 
outcomes for communities.

1-Jun-2018 Ian Brooke 3 3 3 2 3 2 We continue to closely 
monitor the contract with our 
leisure provider. 
Fusions independently 
audited accounts for the year 
ended 31 December 2018, 
showed good improvement 
and growth since the 
previous accounting year. 
Their recovery and 
restructure plan put in place 
at the end of 2017 delivered 
a financial turnaround. 
Fusion anticipates that this 
positive trends will continue 
in 2019.
This is also reflected with 
Fusions Delphi Credit Report 
showing very low risk (since 
April 2019). 
We will continue to monitor

Work collectively and coherently with key 
partners to find solutions.Effective 
relationship management across partners 
will help to manage risks around service 
delivery and reputational risk.

31-Mar-2020 In Progress 60% Ian Brooke

Carry out PSN remedial work. 30-Sep-2019 Ongoing 100% Rocco 
Ensure any security breaches are dealt 
with appropriately, in line with policies.

30-Jun-2018 Ongoing 100% Helen Bishop

Ensure cyber defences (firewalls, anti-
virus, anti-malware, password protection, 
two-factor authentication) is in place

30-Jun-2018 Ongoing 100% Rocco 
Labellarte

Ensure cyber security policies are in 30-Jun-2018 Ongoing 100% Rocco 
Ensure PSN accreditation is achievable. 
Allocate funding as necessary to ensure 
remedial work can be delivered.

31-Dec-2019 In Progress 20% Nigel Kennedy

4 2 3 3 2

Current Risk Score

CRR-043-18-
19

Cyber Attack Cyber security incident which 
impedes the operation of the 
business

T Global attack from outside 
the business                   
Internal hacker

Non-delivery of business 
operation

1-Jun-2018 Helen Bishop 3

This is the risk score after mitigating actions have taken place. The residual risk score shows how effective
 your action plans are at managing the risk

This is the risk score at the time that the risk is reviewed. When the risk is first identified it will be the same as 
the gross risk score.  The current risk score is tracked to ensure that progress is being made to manage the 
and reduce the Council’s exposure.
Residual Risk Score

87



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

To:  Audit and Governance Committee 

Date: 9 January 2020 

Update from Economic Development Manager 

 

Update on Risk: Economic Growth as at 30 November 2019. 

 
The Audit and Governance Committee requested an update on mitigation of the risks to 
the economic growth of the city. 
 

Risk register entry 

 
Reference 
in risk 
register 

Title Description Owner Current 
Impact &  
probability 

Target 
Impact &  
probability 

 
Comments 

Status 

CRR-031-
18-19 

Economic 
Growth 

Local, 
national or 
international 
factors 
adversely 
affect the 
economic 
growth of 
the City 

Tom 
Bridgman  

4 3 4 3 An informal 
Brexit impact 
group of key 
employers 
has been set 
up. We have 
also been 
feeding into 
various 
national 
papers and 
briefings 
which are 
designed to 
inform the 
government's 
negotiating 
position. Also 
undertaking 
business 
surveys. 

In 
progress 

 

Update 

Local, national and international factors will impact on the local economy. Post-election, 
the timing of the UK’s exit (“Brexit”) from the European Union and European Single 
Market could is likely to become clearer in the period to January 31st 2020, which is the 
soonest date Brexit could take place. There is the potential this could lead to 
termination or suspension of investment decisions, or some new investments, 
depending on the nature of the new relationship with Europe. The future trading 
relationship will become clearer in 6-9 months. It is too soon to understand wider 
trading relationships beyond Europe. 

89



In the meantime, officers will need to keep a close eye on key events, government 
communications and speak regularly with major employers and business representative 
organisations. Communication with business will need to be resourced effectively over 
this period. The growth of academic spin-outs aside, the lack of new corporate 
investment decisions over the last 12 months has been concerning. The Economic 
Development Team will create space to meet with more medium and large employers 
to support potential investment where possible. 

Economic Development Officers (EDO) from the Oxfordshire authorities are meeting 
regularly to discuss local economic resilience and Brexit related support needs and 
share intelligence. A system of business intelligence gathering, based on weekly 
reporting is now in place between councils, LEP and Central Government. An OxLEP 
intelligence report is be prepared each week through OxLEP (Oxfordshire Local 
Enterprise Partnership), with District/City EDO input where available. Issues facing 
businesses or the local economy more broadly, are therefore flagged nationally as 
areas of concern. Resource is limited but efforts to engage with businesses are being 
increased where possible. The LEP has been granted central government budget for 
121 mentoring/advice worth c100 hours. The group has agreed to keep a close eye on 
business support demand patterns or issues faced based on the intelligence. 

Structural changes and economic uncertainties continue to affect consumption on the 
high street leading to an evolution and adjustment in the local retail property market 
and proposals for new uses coming forward. Vacancy levels are being monitored. This 
looks positive at present, but the situation in the new year will need close monitoring. 

The dearth of employment space coming forward over the last 24 months and indeed, 
losses to residential is a concern. We are engaging directly with developers to bring 
sites forward and have attracted £34million in Government funds to support major 
development at Oxford Station, Osney Mead Innovation Quarter and Northern 
Gateway. Indeed, major employment schemes such as Northern Gateway are being 
considered for Planning permission at present. This would make a major difference as 
the site makes up a large proportion of the projected employment space to come 
forward. The Science Park and Business Park are also working on new proposals. The 
City Council has also secured £1.9m for delivery of enterprise space at either George 
St, The Town Hall and Standingford House and working on a workspace and 
meanwhile use strategy to bring new players, typically experiencing affordability and 
flexibility barriers into the market and re-use space for alternative business offerings. 
Meanwhile uses in the city centre are already being actively pursued. 

The Economic Development and City Centre Teams is resource limited but has 
advertised two fixed term roles in order to take more mitigating action where possible. 
The Council is working to develop a new economic strategy and city centre strategy, 
both aimed at ensuring an action plan is in place to deliver sustainable and inclusive 
growth locally, and that there is a vibrant city centre offering that provides for the whole 
community’s needs 

 

Name and contact details of author:- 
Name: Matt Peachey 

Job title:  Economic Development Manager 
Service Area: Regeneration and Economy 
Email: mpeachey@oxford.gov.uk  

 

90

mailto:mpeachey@oxford.gov.uk


 
 

To: Audit & Governance Committee 
 
Date: 9 January 2020 
 
Report of: Head of Financial Services  
 
Title of Report: Investigation Team Performance and Activity for 1 April to 30 

November 2019 
 

Summary and Recommendations 

Purpose of report:  

To appraise Members of the activity and performance of the Corporate Investigation 
Team for the period 1 April 2019 to 30 November 2019. 

Key decision  No 

Executive lead member:  Councillor Ed Turner 

 

Policy Framework:  Corporate Plan Priority – Efficient & Effective Council 

 

Recommendation: That the report be noted 

 

 
Appendix 1 – Counter Fraud Team Risk Table 
 

Background 

1. The remit of the Counter Fraud Team (the Team) is to tackle fraud and irregularity 
across the Council, aligned to the services’ fraud risks and the priorities as identified 
in the Council’s own Organisational Fraud Risk Assessment 2019, as well as by the 
previous Audit Commission and also CIPFA’s Fighting Fraud and Corruption Locally 
Strategy (FFCL) 2016-2019. 

2. The aims and objectives of the Team are to provide high quality professional 
corporate fraud investigation services to the Council to prevent and detect fraud and 
error within the Council and also to partner organisations on a commercial basis, 
and to assist cross border agencies where possible. Through this activity, financial 
losses are prevented, additional revenue is identified for recovery, and income is 
secured through supply of services. 

91

Agenda Item 9



 

 
 

Performance 2019/20 

3. For 2019/20, there are four Service Performance Indicators used to track 
performance on a monthly basis. Performance against these targets is shown in the 
table below.  

 

Table 1 - Investigations Team Performance from 1 April 2019 to 30 
November 2019 
 

Measure Annual 
Target 
(100%) 
 

Profiled 
Target 
(66.6%) 

Achieved 
to date/ 
Variance 

Comment 

Number of 
social housing 
properties 
recovered and 
applications for 
housing 
stopped 
 

22 15 13 
 
Minus 
13% 

Proactive activity 
profiled for Q4 likely to 
ensure target is 
exceeded by year end 

Achieve cost 
neutrality from 
identification of 
revenue 
through 
investigation 
activity 
 

£550,000 £366,666 £527,892 
 
Plus 44% 

See Table 2 for 
breakdown - 96% of 
annual target achieved 
by 30 November 

Prevent 
financial 
losses to the 
Council 
through 
investigation 
activity 
 

£2,000,000 £1,333,3
33 

£2,361,1
50 
 
Plus 77% 

See Table 2 for 
breakdown- 118% of 
target achieved 

Right to Buy 
Applications 
prevented 
(false or 
irregular) 

20% of 
application
s received 

20% 37% 
 
Plus 85% 

24 applications 
prevented of 65 
received in the period 
 
Variable total over the 
year 

Trading 
Income from 
commercial 
activity 

£150,000 £100,000 £258,096 
 
Plus 
158% 
 
 

172% of annual target 
achieved. 
 
 

 
 

92



 

 
 

4. Table 2 below provides a breakdown of the income recovered or generated, and 
losses prevented by the Team. 

Table 2 – Income generated and losses prevented from 1 April 2019 to 30 November 
2019 

Type Income 
generated 
£ 

Loss 
avoidance 
£ 

Comment 

Council Tax 
Reduction Scheme 

35,160 31,824 The loss avoided is based on the revised 
Oxford model calculation of 104 weeks 
future entitlement. 

Housing Benefit  124,428 30,126 Although no longer tasked with 
investigating Housing Benefit, these 
values are the by-product of tenancy 
fraud and Council Tax Reduction Scheme 
investigations. 104 week future 
entitlement model used for loss 
avoidance 

Right to Buy  1,987,200 24 Right To Buy applications prevented 
(37% of all applications received) 
following intervention / investigation. 24 x 
£82,800 (max discount) 

Council Tax 
Discount / 
Exemption 
adjustments 

272,674  Achieved through reactive investigation 
casework and rolling review of Single 
Person Discount accounts to identify 
presence of undeclared resident adults 

Non Domestic 
Rates 

90,411  where investigation & data matching 
resulted in the discovery of unregistered 
business premises and identification of 
exemptions or discounts where no 
entitlement exists 

Properties 
Recovered 

 144,000 The cost of keeping a family in temporary 
accommodation for one year calculated 
using the Oxford model (£24k x 6 
properties) 

Housing 
Applications 

 168,000 7 General Register Housing Applications 
stopped through investigation activity 
preventing temporary accommodation 
costs or property allocation - £24,000 per 
instance 

Unlawful Profit 
Order Award 

5,219  Court ordered award from prosecution of 
social housing sub-letting offences 

Savings 527,892 2,361,150 Total = 2,889,042 

Trading income 
from commercial 
activity 

258,096 
 

 Total = 258,096 

Total income and 
loss avoidance to 
authority 

785,988 2,361,150 Total = 3,147,138 

 

93



 

 
 

5. In mid-2019, submissions were made to the Institute of Revenues, Ratings and 
Valuations (IRRV) for consideration in their Performance Awards scheme. The 
Team was shortlisted as Finalists in all four categories entered, which were: 

 Excellence in Counter Fraud 

 Excellence in Partnership Working 

 Excellence in Staff Development 

 Excellence in Innovation (Performance Management) 

The Team received the Highly Commended award for “Excellence in Counter 
Fraud. 

This was fourth consecutive year that the Team has been recognised for 
excellence, having won the awards for Excellence in Corporate Fraud in 2016, 
Excellence in Innovation in 2017 and Excellence in Counter Fraud in 2018. 

6. The Team hosted its fourth annual fraud conference in September 2019 at Oxford 
Town Hall. The aim of the event, which was free to attend, was to help raise 
awareness of fraud trends and emerging risks to attending organisations, and raise 
awareness of the services the Investigations Team can offer. The team is known to 
other organisations in a commercial capacity as The Oxford Investigation Service. 

7. The event was the best attended since the team staged its first conference in 2016. 
Over 220 were present and the event was full to capacity. Such was the popularity 
of the event, demand from organisations for a presence at the trade stand exhibition 
outweighed space available.  

The event has remained a free-to-attend conference for delegates with the costs not 
only being entirely covered through exhibitor charging, but deriving a surplus which 
will be used to fund future counter fraud initiatives. 

A number of business leads arose from the event which are in the process of being 
followed up; it is likely that these will lead to further contractual working 
relationships.  

8. Based on the ongoing success of the conference, the overwhelming positive 
feedback received and the reputation of the event as essential-to-attend for those in 
the profession, as well as new business relationships with partner organisations, the 
team has committed to hosting the event annually with the next date set as 12 
November 2020. 

Internal Investigations 

9. There have been no staff investigations involving the Counter-Fraud team in the 
period. 

10.  An investigation was conducted into a suspicious e-mail received from a supplier, 
requesting that the Environmental Quality Team pay £212,500 of grant funding into 
a different bank to that already on record. The e-mail looked authentic and ICT 
confirmed that it originated from the supplier.  

Further investigation with the supplier uncovered a company-wide data breach of a 
partner company of the supplier which is how fraudsters had intercepted e-mails 
between Oxford City Council and the supplier, which were then replicated. 

Thanks to prompt action of the Environmental Quality Team and the Counter-Fraud 
Team, a significant loss to the authority was avoided. A number of 

94



 

 
 

recommendations were made to help safeguard the authority from further attempts 
of this type. 

Commercial Activity 

11. Fraud Hub working arrangements remain in place with services being contractually 
provided to multiple partner organisations in the public sector. Business 
development activity is now embedded as part of the team culture as plans to bring 
more partners on board take shape with future business in the private sector 
anticipated.   

12. The team is known as The Oxford Investigation Service and has a brochure, 
dedicated website and promotional materials to assist the objective of business 
development. The website can be found at oxfordinvestigationservice.co.uk  

13. Promotional activity, in addition to the Oxford Open Day event, includes speaking 
slots at relevant conferences, mailshots, and meetings with prospective clients 
attending conferences as exhibitors with a dedicated trade stand. 

14. The increasing number of successful projects and activities delivered for Oxford City 
Council has assisted in developing a range of services that can be offered to partner 
organisations and prospective clients. For each marketable service, pricing options 
are developed with the assistance of Financial Services Accountants to ensure 
compliance with financial regulations, ethical trading, and financial feasibility. 

Partnership Working 

15. The Team has provided Counter-Fraud and Investigation services to multiple client 
organisations in the public sector, the result of which will deliver an end-of-year 
trading income of over £250,000. In the period, the Team has provided either 
products and services or the opportunity to exhibit at the annual fraud conference to 
the following 25 organisations: 

 Altia Solutions 

 Appen 

 Basingstoke and Deane Borough Council 

 Cherwell District Council 

 CIFAS 

 Destin Solutions Ltd 

 Equifax 

 Fiscal Technologies 

 Greensquare 

 Hightown Housing Association 

 HooYu 

 Intec for Business 

 ITS Training 

 London Councils 

 Oxfordshire County Council Audit Team 

 Oxfordshire County Council Blue Badge Team 

 Peter Darby Associates 

 Riverside Housing Association 

 Slough Borough Council 

 South Northamptonshire Council 

 South Oxfordshire District Council 

95

http://www.oxfordinvestigationservice.co.uk/


 

 
 

 Trust ID 

 Vale of White Horse District Council 

 Wandle Housing 

 Warwick District Council 
 

16. The Team had been the sole provider of Counter Fraud services to Warwick District 
Council (WDC) since February 2017. After the 12 month contract had concluded, 
WDC again commissioned the Oxford Investigation Service under a new 3 year 
contract, commencing April 2018, to provide the capability over a longer term 
arrangement. This arrangement continues although a recent change in local line 
management has taken place; instead of reporting to the Benefits & Fraud Manager, 
the team now reports to the Audit & Risk Manager. 

In 2018, the Team was commissioned to become the sole provider of Counter 
Fraud services for Cherwell District Council and South Northants Councils (CSN). 
The service commenced in July 2018 and has been delivering results since the very 
start. The terms of the contract are that the service charge for each year is settled 
on commencement of the contract, and again on anniversary of the contract.  

Legal Implications 

17. The continuing work of the Investigation Team, coupled with the Council’s Avoiding 
Bribery, Fraud and Corruption, Whistle Blowing and Money Laundering policies and 
procedures give assurance that the Authority is compliant with the Bribery Act 2010, 
the Money Laundering Regulations 2007 and the Proceeds of Crime Act 2002. 
Failure to adhere to the Policies would impact on the legal and reputational risk to 
the Council.  

18. All data sharing, both internally and externally, is covered by Data Sharing Protocols 
and agreements, and is conducted in the interests of prevention and detection of 
fraud, crime and other financial irregularity, in accordance with the provisions and 
exemptions of the European General Data Protection Regulation and the Data 
Protection Act 2018. 

19. All contractual agreements devised for joint working with other organisations have 
been reviewed and approved by Legal Services. 

20. The Council has relied upon its powers under the Section 1 of the Local Authorities 
(Goods and Services) Act 1970 (the “1970 Act”) to provide services to other local 
authorities and public bodies. The 1970 Act enables local authorities to supply 
goods and services (subject to certain restrictions) to other local authorities and to 
public bodies. “Public body” means a person or description of persons appearing to 
the Secretary of State to be exercising functions of a public nature 

Financial Implications 

21. The team continues to prevent and detect fraud and financial irregularity, first and 
foremost, for Oxford City Council. Engaging in a number of innovative, proactive 
initiatives has ensured the continued delivery of a robust counter fraud service. It is 
forecasted that by end of the current financial year, the team will have delivered 
over £3.3m in additional revenue and prevented fraud losses. The gross cost of 
running the team for 2019-2020 is projected as £514,757. 

96



 

 
 

Environmental Implications 

22. The majority of visits undertaken by staff in the Team are done using the Council 
pool vehicles. All staff are conscious of the environmental implications of service 
delivery and will always seek the lowest impact route where possible. This will 
include journey sharing where feasible, remote working to reduce number of 
journeys taken, reducing use of paper and sourcing products and materials from 
sustainable origins. 

Risk Implications 

23. Team specific risks are set out in Appendix 1. 

 
 

Name and contact details of author:- 
Scott Warner 
Counter Fraud Manager 
Financial Services / Counter Fraud Team 
Tel: 01865 252158 e-mail: swarner@oxford.gov.uk 
 

97



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1 – Counter Fraud Team Risk Table 
 

Risk Descriptor Risk 
Likelihood 

 

Risk 
Impact 

Action / Controls / Measures taken Timescale 

Council services are subject to fraudulent 
representations from service users 
resulting in financial loss, reputational 
damage and significant impact on 
business 

High Severe 

The Council maintains an effective Counter Fraud 
team which acts as a deterrent to fraudulent activity 
and safeguards the organisation. A number of 
innovative proactive and reactive initiatives deliver 
ongoing class-leading performance with high values 
in detected and prevented financial losses 

Ongoing 

High staff turnover within team. 5 key staff 
left in the period, 4 citing salary as the 
primary reason for leaving. Salaries for 
equivalent roles in LA’s locally and 
nationally are considerably higher, yet 
demand less flexibility from their staff. 
 

High Severe 

A job re-evaluation exercise is underway; the 
outcome of which is hoped will alleviate this problem 
to some extent. The Council’s contracted 
employment agency, Reed, has been approached to 
help provide interim assistance.  
 

January 
2020 

Inability to recruit specialist staff to 
undertake complex profiled projects 
 

Medium Moderate 

A job evaluation exercise is underway; the outcome 
of which is hoped will alleviate this problem to some 
extent.  
 

January to 
April 2020 

Inability to recruit staff with the appropriate 
flexibility to service contracts outside of 
Oxfordshire ie – London, Warwick, Slough Medium Severe 

A job re-evaluation exercise is underway; the 
outcome of which is hoped will alleviate this problem 
to some extent. The Council’s contracted 
employment agency, Reed, has been approached to 
help provide interim assistance.  

January 
2020 

Contracts with partner organisations will 
not be renewed, affecting forecasted 
revenue for the team, aligned to the 
business plan and Medium Term Financial 
Plan 

Medium Severe 

Regular contract liaison meetings take place with 
existing service users to gain an understanding of 
future plans. Promotional activity is elevated to 
assist in development of additional future business 
with new partner organisations. 

Ongoing 

 

99



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Minutes of a meeting of the  
AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
on Wednesday 23 October 2019  
 
 

Committee members: 

Councillor Fry (Chair) Councillor Corais 

Councillor Gant Councillor Gotch 

Councillor Rush 
Councillor Tanner (for Councillor 
Munkonge) 

Officers:  

Claire Bateman, Health and Safety Manager 
Anita Bradley, Monitoring Officer 
Nigel Kennedy, Head of Financial Services 
Bill Lewis, Financial Accounting Manager 
Neil Markham, Incomes Team Leader 
Jennifer Thompson, Committee and Members Services Officer 

Also present: 

Gurpreet Dulay, Manager, BDO Internal audit 
Yasmin Ahmed (Internal Auditor), BDO  
Adrian Balmer (External Auditor), EY   

Apologies: 

Councillors Munkonge and Lloyd-Shogbesan sent apologies. 
 

19. Declarations of Interest  

None. 

20. Risk Management Quarterly Reporting to September 2019  

The Committee considered the report of the Head of Financial Services giving an 
update on both corporate and service risks as at 30 September 2019.  
 
Bill Lewis (Financial Accounting Manager) introduced the report and answered 
questions. He outlined the likely impact of the increased interest rates on new Public 
Works Loan Board loans on the council’s housing company and noted that in some 
cases commercial could now be more attractive to councils seeking to borrow. However 
the market reaction to the PWLB rate rise is still unknown. The increased costs and 
uncertainty around borrowing rates for the housing company could affect house supply, 
which is concerning, but the impact on the council’s housing delivery programme could 
not currently be predicted. 
 
 

101

Agenda Item 10



 

The Committee noted the report and answers to questions, and requested for the 
next meeting: 

 An update Economic growth (reference CRR-03-18-19) - factors adversely 
affecting the economic growth of the city. 

 A report on Recruitment and retention (reference CRR-034-18-19) - actions 
taken to mitigate the identified risks around hard to fill roles including the 
work on recruitment procedures; the process and findings from exit 
interviews; and on training and development. 

  

21. EY Annual Audit letter for the year ending 31 March 2019  

The Committee considered the annual audit letter dated August 2019 of the external 
auditor EY, setting out the audit opinion and findings at the conclusion of the audit of 
the council’s accounts. 
 
The Committee noted that EY had issued an unqualified opinion, with no significant 
risks found on testing.  
 
They were very concerned that EY had completed the audit and signed off on 7 August, 
a week late. They noted the reputational impact borne by the Council as a result of 
EY’s lateness. 
Adrian Balmer, EY, explained that EY and his team were disappointed that they had not 
met the deadline and were working prevent a repeat. This was not unique to this 
Council as 40% of audits in England and Wales completed late this year. The 31 July 
deadline (that applied this year and in 2018) significantly compressed the audit 
timetable and there were not sufficient experienced staff to complete the required work 
over a compressed timescale. 
 
The Committee noted that the Head of Financial Services would meet EY to agree the 
final audit fee, to review the audit process for this year, and to seek assurances that the 
project plan for next year would result in the audit completing in time. 
 
The Committee agreed to note the annual audit letter and the final audit opinion. 
 

22. Local Government Audit Committee Briefing Quarter 3 
September 2019  

The Committee considered and noted the Local Government Audit Committee 
briefing for Quarter 3 prepared by EY. 
 

23. Internal Audit: Progress update Quarter 2 October 2019  

The Committee considered the report of the internal auditor (BDO) informing the Audit 
and Governance Committee of progress made against the 2019/20 internal audit plan. 
 
Gurpreet Dulay and Yasmin Ahmed (BDO) presented the report and answered 
questions on the final audit summaries. 
 

102



 

(a) Collection Fund 
The Committee noted the summary and the recommendations.   
 
(b) Health and Safety 
The Committee noted that all medium and low risk properties would have an up to date 
fire risk assessment by the end of January 2020. Assessments for high risk properties 
were all up to date. The staff induction process had been revised to ensure that these 
were fully completed in good time. 
 
(c) IT General Controls 
The Committee noted the summary and the recommendations. 
 
(d) Investment Properties (2018/19 audit) 
The Committee noted that the Council has investments with funds managing property 
portfolios and had no direct control over these properties. The governance around, and 
allocations to, investments were regularly reviewed.  
Arrears had reduced as a result of better reporting on arrears and monthly meetings 
between the asset management and debtor teams to agree actions. The debtor team’s 
resilience had been improved. 
 
(e) Elections 
Anita Bradley (Head of Law and Governance) reminded the Committee that the 
elections team’s priority was to ensure that all polling stations were staffed on the day. 
Prospective staff would be asked to complete training before being placed on the 
reserve list for appointments. Voluntary groups hiring out their venues as polling 
stations should not be faced with complex billing processes.  
 
The Committee noted the report and the large number of ‘substantial’ opinions 
issued. 
 
The Committee asked that in future the report includes the management 
response to medium and high risk findings. 
 

24. Internal Audit: Recommendation follow up Quarter 2 October 
2019  

The Committee considered the report of the internal auditor (BDO) setting out progress 
on those recommendations raised by Internal Audit which are due for implementation. 
Yasmin Ahmed (BDO) presented the report. 
 
Neil Markham (Incomes Team Leader) gave an update on implementing the 
recommendations from the Accounts Receivables audit on sundry debtors invoicing 
and outlined the work on embedding due diligence processes. 
 
The Committee noted that, while the recommendation on budget management was not 
complete, discussions with budget managers had taken place and training sessions 
were being scheduled.  
 
The Committee agreed to note the report. 

103



 

25. Minutes of the previous meeting  

The Committee agreed to approve the minutes of the meeting held on 24 July 2019 as 
a true and accurate record. 
 

26. Dates and times of meetings  

The Committee noted the dates and times of future meetings. 
 
 
The meeting started at 6.00 pm and ended at 7.05 pm 
 
 
 
Chair …………………………..   Date:  Thursday 9 January 2020 

104


	Agenda
	3 Council Tax base 2020/21
	Council tax base 2020-21 Appendices 1 and 2
	Appendix 1
	Littlemore 
	Old Marston
	Risinghurst & Sandhills
	Blackbird Leys 
	Unparished Area

	Council tax base 2020-21 Appendix 3
	Council tax base 2020-21 Appendix 4
	Council tax base 2020-21 Appendix 5

	4 Progress with the Recruitment and Retention Action Plan
	5 Internal Audit: Progress update Quarter 3 January 2020
	6 Internal Audit: Follow up on recommendations from the audit of Fusion
	7 Internal Audit: Recommendation follow up Quarter 3 January 2020
	8 Risk Management Quarterly Reporting to December 2019
	Corporate Risk Register Q3 November 2019
	Update on Economic Growth risk

	9 Investigation Team Performance and Activity for year to 30 November 2019
	10 Investigation Team report Appendix 1 - Risk Table

	10 Minutes of the previous meeting



